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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (gavel). . . Good morning, everyone. This is our Planning
Committee meeting and I'm Sol Kaho'ohalahala, the Planning Committee Chair. The
Chair would like to call our meeting to order this afternoon. Before we begin if I may
request that anyone in the Chambers if you would put any of your noisemaking devices
on silent mode, I would appreciate that. Okay. I would like to begin by introducing the
Committee Members that are here this afternoon. We're starting off from my left,
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. Followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha and good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. Member Wayne Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Followed by Member Joseph Pontanilla, who is a Non-Voting
Member, but I thank you for your attendance. And then Committee Member,
Mr. Michael Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. Excused today is Member Michael Molina,
and Vice-Chair Jo Anne Johnson. Okay. We have with us also from the Administration,
from the Department of Corporation Counsel, Mr. Michael Hopper, Deputy Corporation
Counsel. Aloha. And from the Planning Department, we have the Director,
Mr. Jeff Hunt.
MR. HUNT: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. And we have from the Long Range Planning
Section, Mr.--what's your name?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckles)..
MR. SUMMERS: Summers.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Sorry, John, I apologize for that, Mr. John Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then next to John is his Long Range Planner, and this is
Mr. Michael, Mike, Dave Michaelson.
MR. MICHAELSON: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Also I want to acknowledge and welcome our Vice-Chair to
the Committee, Member Jo Anne Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then to my left are our Committee Staff, our
Legislative Analyst and Attorney, Mr. David Raatz, and our Committee Secretary
Clarita Balala. Okay. And then in the gallery we have with us today Julia, is it Staley?
Julia? Okay, who is a Planner from the Department of Planning, Planning, and thank you
for being with us. Okay.
ITEM NO. 2

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (C.C. No. 07-54)

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We will accept public testimony in a few minutes. Those
wishing to testify, if you haven't done so, please sign up at the table out front. We will
be allowing testimony of, for three minutes and with a minute to conclude; and when you
come up to the podium, if you would state your name and who you represent for our
records.
So... so let's begin by saying that today we are meeting on PC-2, which is the General
Plan Update. This week represents really a, a milestone in the County's General Plan
Update. On Friday, the Council is scheduled to pass on first reading, the County. . .the
Countywide Policy Plan; and the first phase of the, which is the first phase of the General
Plan Update. Today the Planning Committee is scheduled to begin voting on our second
phase of the General Plan Update which is the Maui Island Plan. We began our review of
the Maui Island Plan back in December 14 th , and we then spent the month of January
conducting community meetings throughout the island of Maui. Today we will begin to
revise and approve the content of the Maui Island Plan beginning with introductory
materials and then proceeding to Chapters 1 and 2.
First, I wanna make a few observations on procedure. The Council's deadline for
adoption of the Maui Island Plan is October 18, 2010. To allow the Council time to
review the Committee Report, schedule a public hearing, and hear the legislation on two
readings, the Planning Committee must finish its review of this by July 12 th . Because of
the Budget Session, that begins next month, and will carry on for two months, the
Planning Committee is left with only five calendared meeting dates between now and
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July 12 th . Okay. So therefore, we will need to be as efficient as we can and make
significant progress at each meeting if it is the will of the body to meet those deadlines.
Generally, each chapter contains a narrative section, a policy section, and a map section.
So for each chapter, I will accept motions to approve and revise the narrative section.
Now before we move to the policy section, we will address each policy section via the
matrix format that we used in the Countywide policy planning process. So we will
address each map section with the technical assistance of the Planning Department.
Before we begin our deliberations, the Chair would like to begin with public testimony.
So without any objections, the Committee will now accept public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Each testifier will be given three minutes,
and the Chair would like to begin with the first testifier which is Carol Reimann followed
by Francis Lydon.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. REIMANN: Good afternoon, Chairman Kaho'ohalahala and Members of the Planning
Committee. My name is Carol Reimann; I represent the Maui Hotel and Lodging
Association. We're the legislative arm of the visitor industry and collectively, we
employ over 10,000 Maui County residents. First off, I would like to. . .commend the
GPAC, the Planning Commission, and the Planning Department for all of their hard work
on this document. As you know, our industry continues to struggle through these
uncertain economic times. This slow down in business is anticipated to continue through
2010 with a very slow recovery starting in 2011. Low occupancies and low visitor
spending are all based on low consumer confidence that have hurt our industry. And this
decline has trickled down to affect most businesses on the island.
In regard to the Population Section of the Island Plan, Objective 2 addresses the visitor
industry. Attached to my written testimony are comments to each of the items listed
under Objective 1. At this time, I would just like to highlight a few of our concerns.
Policy 1, it reads define the boundaries of Maui's resort destination areas and limit them
to Wailea, Makena, Kapalua, and Kaanapali. Limit large-scale resort development to
areas within these boundaries. We are concerned that defining the boundaries of Maui's
resort destination areas could be interpreted in such a way that no accommodation
facilities would be permitted outside of the areas specified. There are currently
accommodation properties and Hotel zoned lands that exist outside of these areas, and we
would like to protect these properties. We recommend the language be changed to read
define the boundaries of Maui's large-scale resort destination areas to Wailea, Makena,
Kapalua, and Kaanapali. This would limit the large-scale type resorts yet protect our
smaller and undeveloped properties that exist outside of these large areas.
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Policy 2, attempts to put a limit on the number of visitors allowed on the island to
33 percent of the resident population. Does this mean at one time or is this a cumulative
figure? There would be no way to monitor or enforce such a cap and our primary fear is
that it would allow for various interpretations of how to limit the visitor industry. Action
Item 1, similar to Policy 1, refers to resort destination areas. We ask that the language be
changed to reference large-scale resort destination areas. Once again to protect the
existing accommodations and vacant Hotel zoned properties that are outside of the main
areas Wailea, Makena, Kapalua, and Kaanapali. As tourism is the economic engine of
Maui, we all should have a vested interest in protecting the industry so that, that so many
of our residents rely upon to survive. We encourage you to incorporate language that
supports a healthy and vibrant visitor industry, and that the industry represents 40 percent
of all jobs and contributes approximately 40 percent of all Real Property Tax collections
on Maui. Once again, we are here to offer our services to the Planning Committee as you
review the draft Maui Island Plan. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mahalo, Carol, thank you. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Okay. Seeing none, then thank you.
MS. REIMANN: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Francis Lydon followed by Pam English.
MR. LYDON: Good afternoon, Ladies and Gentlemen of the Committee. My name is
Francis Michael Patrick Lydon, and I have been an owner of Unit 311 in the Maalaea
Banyans for ten years, and prior to that, a frequent visitor, an annual visitor to this
beautiful island for an additional ten years. I'll dispense with the niceties except
to. . .welcome back Jo Anne Johnson, Committee Member Johnson, it's nice to see you
and the service for Jim...raised a tear to my eye.
There is a train wreck about to occur in Maalaea. This is a runaway locomotive charging
down the tracks right through 257 acres of prime Ag land. Excuse me...the locomotive
won't be wrecked if it is continued on to other Ag land. Most certainly the 257 acres of
rural open space will be wrecked forever. How does this relate to the Maui Island Plan?
Well, Spencer Construction Company, via the affordable housing law, is making an end
run around the will of the people. Two, over three years, over three years, the people of
this island have spoken loud and clear as to the direct, direction they wish development to
take. Three, it is the will of the people that development and urban sprawl be curtailed
and centered to prevent chewing up the remaining open space of this island with blight
and urban sprawl. I dare say that all of you before me have flown into LAX at one time
or another. That ladies and gentlemen is urban sprawl. The people of this island do not
want that for Maui, and have so spoken to an elated to, by the GPAC and the plan. I also
must believe that all of you before me concur likewise.
The land Spencer wishes to decimate with 1,100 houses, homes, 3,000 residents, 2,000
vehicles, and a wastewater treatment plant that is situated so close to Maalaea Bay, that
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should a catastrophic kona or hurricane occur, will forever pollute the bay, that's forever.
His plan to turn 257 acres of landscape into approximately 125 acres of hardscape is an
environmental and financial disaster and suicide. I urge this planning body to acquiesce
to the will of the people of this island. I also urge the body to accelerate the approval
process so that it legally establishes the will of the people and get out ahead of Spencer's
end run. When it comes time to decide if Maalaea's open space and rural ambiance is to
be preserved or not, the County Council will have the will of the people reduced to law,
and act for the will and support of such rule. I believe, I leave you with one thought,
gone is gone forever. Thank you for allowing me to testify before you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay,
seeing none, thank you very much. Pam English to be followed by Charles Jencks.
MS. ENGLISH: Aloha, Chair, and Members of the Committee, my name is Pam English with
Maui Land and Pineapple Company. I just have a couple of items today. Well, of
course, I didn't get past the introduction without my first suggestion. In the Executive
Summary in key highlights, it discusses affordable housing. It says housing for our
workforce will remain affordable in perpetuity. Housing that is approved as affordable
will not be converted to free market housing. Legislation under Chapter 2.96 already
addresses this with specific requirements for affordable housing. Attempting to create
duplicative policies that may legally conflict is not good legislation. 2.96 already states
that rental housing will be affordable for the life of the unit, and for sale housing will be
restricted for 25 years.
If you recall, when the legislation was passed, there was significant discussions on issues
with using the words perpetual. It's suggested you delete this statement as it's already
law and would create confusion as to which definitions to use. I'm suggesting some
language affordable housing with. . .with dignity for our workforce, remains one of the
most important issues we must face in the implementation of the General Plan.
Second point, in the introduction, we're introduced to the implications of the plan. It says
all agencies are required to comply with the documents that comprise the General Plan,
all zoning ordinances, Subdivision Ordinance and administrative actions by agencies are
required to be consistent with the documents that comprise the General Plan. Preparation
of County budgets and Capital Improvement Programs are required to implement the
General Plan to the extent practical. We spoke about similar language difficulties with
the Countywide Policy Plan. Does the Council want to restrict itself from making law
that does not completely comply with the Maui Island Plan? This plan has to be updated
every ten years, and if circumstances change in the interim and you wanna make timely
change to law, you might be stuck and have to wait. Why take away your legislative
powers? Might this language preclude a potential reform ordinance from being heard
because it does not specifically comply; or make the requirement to require for some
legislation that we might otherwise not accept. Are you ready for a Countywide
comprehensive rezoning? In order for this plan to work, this is imperative.
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Which document prevails until such time as all ordinances and zonings are updated to be
consistent with the document? What will take precedence or what will be in limbo? I
have some suggested languages for the, the last issue, and it's in my letter adding to the
extent practical and when a conflict and policy is created in the use of the General Plan,
the General Plan shall be used in establishing appropriate public policy.
My third point, in the introduction, there's a short passage about the history of pineapple
and its role in forming Maui's modern day landscape. It states that by 1930, over 28
percent of Maui's cultivated lands were dedicated to pineapple. The last sentence tells of
MLP's announcement to cease pineapple production. But the story didn't end there
thankfully. We respectfully request the inclusion of an additional language that continues
the story and perhaps gives us renewed hope for an expanded industry in the future. I
have some language, the cultivation of pineapple persisted in 2010 with the formation of
Haliimaile Pineapple Company, an offshoot of Maui Land and Pineapple which continues
the pineapple legacy of Maui. I thought would be nice.
And finally in Heritage Resources, there's a few sections that we, we do support. It, the
requirement of UDRB approval of aboveground utility poles, that's about time. We need
to figure out how we're gonna work together with MECO, but let's work on that. And
then increased funding for the acquisition, protection, and restoration of natural areas in
open space, that's great as a first step, but maybe we can strengthen the plan's emphasis
on proactive reclamation and reforestation. We have an entire division that actively
pursues not only protection, but reclamation of our resources. Often times, we spend all
our energy updating databases and researching current conditions. We know our
resources have been affected by clear cutting; we know that some of our trees like the
wiliwili have been affected. Perhaps let's emphasize the intent for proactive reclamation.
So a couple suggested language, a policy statement, support the restoration of indigenous
and native habitats, and maybe an action statement. Implement incentives for restoration
of indigenous and native habitats. As always, thanks for the opportunity to add my two
cents.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay,
seeing none,-MS. ENGLISH: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --thank you. Charles Jencks to be followed by Dick Mayer.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon, Members, Mr. Chair. My name is Charlie Jencks here on my
own behalf as a planner. And trying to keep track of the General Plan process, the Policy
Plan, and associated documents that I have testified before you before on the Policy Plan.
I wanna follow up with some relevant issues today.
In the introduction there's a statement about the intent of the Maui Island Plan, and it
talks about that the, the Island Plan, well, the intent is not to compare the Island Plan and
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the policies to administrative administerial approvals. I think the plan needs to be a little
more direct and say either it is or it isn't. The intent sometimes creates uncertainty for
people who review documents against policy plans and General Plan documents. As a
person who looks for certainty in my line of business, I think it would be better to be a
little more overt and say whether it does or does not. I think I like the idea of comparing
applications to like the scenic map and, and there, and whatever other, other maps are
referenced, but I think it needs to be a little more overt in whether or not it is going to or
not going to be not just intent on comparing applications to policy in the Maui Island
Plan. The Policy Plan is referenced in the introduction as well and as, as before, I've
testified before you, that I think the, there needs to be a little more clear statement as to
the Policy Plan's role relative to all subsequent documents, the Island Plan and the
community plans, and I also think you need to address the issue of as to how that policy
plan's gonna be interpreted against existing documents as well as this document as well.
I, that hasn't been addressed, it should be addressed because otherwise you're gonna run
into problems administrating the documents with the public.
On the. . .Population Element, the largest increase in population in this document to
2030, is Kihei, and Central Maui; and I've talked to you about policy direction with
regard to infrastructure. I'm not sure that is being considered in the context of the Policy
Plan, but obviously, unless you address that issue with regard to infrastructure, you're
going to have a problem given the current. . .policies you have in existing community
plans. And, and I urge you to address that, since clearly growth is planned for either
South Maui or Central Maui. If you don't address the policy issue, you're gonna find
yourself in a quandary in the future.
There are a number of sections in the policy, a section that talks about surveys to track
satisfaction, measuring incomes, educating visitors, community satisfaction. The
question for me is who's gonna pay for this? How much time is it going to take? And
who's gonna do it? Also, the question of limiting resort development to the existing
areas I think is the problem. Who's gonna, where, where are we gonna hire these people?
I think you need to think about limiting those areas to, to future development and its role
in employing the people who live on this island.
On the Heritage Resources Section, same type of issue. If you look through these
sections, you'll find many, many areas the majority of them are controlled by the
Planning Department. Who's gonna pay for it? How are they gonna hire the people that
do this work? I think you should ask the Department of Planning to provide some kind of
fiscal analysis by element so that you can understand the fiscal ramifications of these
goals, objectives, and policies. If, if you don't, you're gonna once again approve a
document that's gonna create expectations for the public that you may not be able to
realize, and that's gonna create problems for you as elected officials. So, and I'm gonna
provide to you, Mr. Chair, my detailed comments on the goals, objectives, and policies in
a later communication. Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good afternoon, Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I like your last comments in regards to who's gonna pay
for this, you know, after they do the analysis, who's gonna pay for the improvements that
we need to do? And, you know, that's a big problem that I, I think all of, all of us, you
know, gonna wrestle with. But again I, I saw the numbers in Appendix, I think, "C", and
it's mind boggling so I, I take your comments really well in regards to that item. Thank
you.
MR. JENCKS: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, any other questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Dick Mayer to be followed by Charlene Griffin.
MR. MAYER: Good afternoon, Chairman, and Council Members. I don't have any prepared
written comments, but I would just want to make some comments about the Population
Section from the GPAC perspective. One of the things in the ordinance is a request that
we have multiple projections of population. One of them might be what would be
predicted if we do nothing? Another one would be a projection based on what we would
like to have and to draw, draw up a plan based on what the population of Maui, what the
Council feels is, as their representatives, should be a population growth. The numbers
that you have here in the section here that you're, you're looking at today population, are
not what people want necessarily, but what the State Department of Business and
Economic Development predicted would be the population growth rate assuming that
nothing happened, nothing changed in the plans, and I think you should keep that in
mind. Because one of the things that we heard from the public is we went around over
and over again in the various communities was don't overgrow Maui, don't let it get out
of hand, don't spoil the beautiful island we have. And that would imply that there should
be some kinds of controls over the population growth not just let it go uncontrolled.
One of the ways of doing that is by the urban growth boundaries that you'll be looking at
later on and that will indicate the areas where growth should take place, and also the
number of units that go within each of those urban growth areas. The numbers that
you're gonna be seeing later on are based on certain assumptions. One assumption is that
the size of households is going to decrease quite dramatically. For example, and this is in
the numbers that you have right in front of you, in 1990, the population household size
was 2.99, and by 2000, ten years later, it had dropped only to 2.94. This, these estimates
in here, and you'll see that in, in that on Page I think it's 1.4, talk about the population
going all the way down to 2.66 by 2030. I think that's much too low a number. I think
household size given the cost of housing here will stay at a much higher level. The
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implication is that we will not need as many units to house the population in the future,
and I would urge you take a good look when you come to the population and take a look
at the implications of that population growth rate, how many units do we need to plan for,
are the numbers being given, are the urban growth boundaries perhaps too far out to
accommodate what will really be the population of the island.
A second point regarding the, the ratio of 1:3 residents to tourists, and you'll see in the
commentary on Page 1., was it 1.5, 1.6, the reference to the tourist industry, and its
growth and the desire to keep quality on the island. If we allow the tourist industry to
grow excessively, let's say to, let's one, one tourist for every two residents, we will
destroy one of the main reasons why tourist come to this island. They don't only come
for the natural beauty; they also come for the culture, the ambiance of the island. If we
have a ratio of too many tourists in comparison to residents, this will no longer be the
type of island that I think many of us would like to have and certainly many of the
tourists come here. And so the comments here in the population section talk about
spoiling the golden goose here that's been laying our wonderful eggs here for us, and we
certainly don't want to see an excessive growth. So I would urge you that you keep that
ratio 1:3 in mind as you go through the planning process. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Victorino-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you, Mr. Mayer, for being here. I know you
have been intrinsically involved in this and we thank you for your services. I like to go
back to what you're talking about that 1:3 ratio-MR. MAYER: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I'm looking at it here.
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You're not talking and I think that was brought up by, by
one, by the representative from the Hotel-MR. MAYER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Lodging Association.
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MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The 58,900 and 58,895 in the year 2030, is based on a
daily base or is it based on a monthly base, or is it based on an annual base? Because if
everything stayed equal, and I'm on Page 17, so you know exactly where I went to.
MR. MAYER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One point dash, 1.7, right?
MR. MAYER: Right, I see it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So everybody in the room is on the same page,
yeah? And I'm looking at the chart, right?
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I going right to the top of the chart right 2030, right?
MR. MAYER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay and yeah, I see 58,895 based on a population
of. . .176,687;-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --a 1:3 ratio, gotcha. Okay, so now the question was
brought up monthly, daily, yearly, whoa, and I hopefully, not yearly because I mean we,
58,000 a year that would be devastating to our economy.
MR. MAYER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what are you basing it on, a daily basis?
MR. MAYER: I think the number 58,000 tourists is the daily average census on, on the, year
round so summer time it might be high, higher, winter time a little bit lower, but that
would be the average during the year on the island.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you and I, I'm glad you said average because we do
have our high season and our low season.
MR. MAYER: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And at times, you may have 65,000 tourists on this island
and other times you might only have 35 because depending on the seasonal-MR. MAYER: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --wishes of the traveler itself and deals and all the other
things right. Then the other thing I was interested in asking you about is going back to
this forecast here, you know, that you brought up about population and-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --numbers per household.
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And you hear, I read what you said and they're,
they're basically saying it's going to decline.
MR. MAYER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But you're saying just the opposite that you think it's more
or less gonna level off and maybe even increase-MR. MAYER: No, I'm not saying it's going to increase, what I'm saying is I don't think the
precipitous drop from 2.99 down to what, 2.66, is realistic.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MAYER: I think it will drop slightly, but not necessarily significantly, and the GPAC had a
major debate. This was the cause for, for several meetings in fact.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MAYER: What would that number be? Because and, we, we ended up with I think 2.8 as a
number that we thought out, in the future, the number of units that would be needed
would be based on 2.8. The Department insisted that the number should be lower than
that, and they came with numbers at various times 2.7 and 2.66 as numbers that they
thought would be more realistic. I personally think the higher number is more realistic,
the lower number I think is, is unrealistic. That would be very small family sizes and not
really in tune with the type of culture we have with the cost of housing we have here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I guess the last question I have is in this
demographics here, we were talking basically population median age increasing from
34.1 to 36.2-- 12 -
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MR. MAYER: What-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --on same page, one up.
MR. MAYER: --what, what, what page are you on?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh no, still on 1, 1-4.
MR. MAYER: 1-4?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And just one line, one line, one segment above what you
were talking about-MR. MAYER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I just wanted your take on that because we've also
been told that we have a tsunami of aging coming in, and these projections based on
between 1990 and 2000, may not be real applicable for what we are really facing in the,
in the next 20 years out.
MR. MAYER: I'm so happy you asked me that because my next item that I would, if I had more
time I would've gone to the aging question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MAYER: There's absolutely no question that we are aging, that the numbers of people in
the aging, aging community and you will have to put into this plan some very strong
protections to make sure that there's enough senior housing, but it's not just housing,
itstransportation, services, medical care, et cetera, you know, delivery of meals. There's
a whole range of services as the population ages and particularly at that very high age
group. There will be some...a lot of people in their eighties and over ... (change tape,
start 1B). . . who will need a lot of services and we do have to make provisions both in
the Budget and just in, in, in the design of homes, aging in place type homes, et cetera.
So it has all kinds of implications, and I know that you, you're aware of a lot of those, I
know that we will have to put money into that as, as time goes on.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you and I'll let my other colleagues ask you
some more questions, but thank you, Mr. Mayer, for that information.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Mayer, thank you for being
here. I wanted to touch on tourism also. As the suggestion made by GPAC to limit the
growth of the tourism industry, did GPAC consider what industries may replace the jobs
needed for those people?
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MR. MAYER: You'll see when you get to the Economic Development Section that there are a
number of comments about encouraging diversification in two, two regards. One is
within the tourist industry though so we perhaps have what might be called niche
tourism, Ag tourism, ecotourism, medical tourism, even if we were someday getting
people say from Micronesia to come here and need medical services. In other words,
within the. . ."tourist industry", expanded so it's a broader range both geographically
where we get people from as well as the types of tourism. The second would be to look
at other industries and incentives that could be done to. . .include, improve the
agricultural sector, sports activities, et cetera, in the community so that we can get people
to come here and, and, and, and be paying money to the community for services. So
there are sections in there in the economic development.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for pointing that out, but as we develop or
explore other tourist or visitor markets as you mention-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --if we limit our growth in tourism which would limit the
facilities available, where do we put these other markets that would come here?
MR. MAYER: What it would do it would make for stronger tourist industry by having a broader
base of people so that if, if you think of it as recruiting tourist where they would be
coming so that we wouldn't be just relying on people who are coming here for the high
end, you know, golf, tennis thing, but we're getting a variety of people who may want to
come here for other activities so that if the economy were to go down in one area, one
dimension from, from the East Coast, let's say we might get people from the West Coast,
so if people are no longer coming here for golf and tennis, they may be coming here for
just quiet meditation or retreats types, type of tourism. So we would strengthen not
necessarily the sheer numbers of people, but to make it a stronger industry by
diversifying the various sectors.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. And then finally my question on limiting or
controlling population growth,—
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --how does the GPAC decide how to do that when I think
many times that had been considered, but because we're one of the 50 United States, and
the right-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --to travel and the right to live any place you want to, how
do you control population under those allowed rights?
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MR. MAYER: You don't necessarily control the people, but you control, there's two major
ways. One is housing by making it easier or more difficult to get housing here, and that's
what urban growth boundaries are about that would control where housing can take place
not just helter-skelter everywhere on the island. The second is by job opportunities, and
that's something that over the years if, if you were to give incentives for a lot more
industries to come here, whatever that might be, that would obviously make it more
attractive for people to move here. On the other hand, if there were fewer of those
incentives, but very selectively done in areas that you would want to control the growth,
you could control perhaps the number of people that might want to move here and also
how do we retain our young people so that they stay here. In other words, finding out
what young people who are growing up on Maui want for jobs and making sure those
kinds of jobs are available so they don't move away. Those are, those are techniques you
can use, you cannot say you cannot come, but you can create the opportunities for
housing, job potential, and also at the, at the elderly end I could, could add the comment
was made about the aging population. We have a lot of people who've moved to the
condos in Kihei and the West Maui Kapalua area, who are let's say in their sixties active
here. Then they get into the seventy-five and eighty, we can do things to, to induce those
people to stay on here and provide medical care and other services for them or we don't
provide those services in those communities; in which case, many of them will leave. So
there, there are ways that we can, can regulate population but indirectly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and finally, Mr. Mayer, and, and thank you for your
responses. Finally, in, in, in the concern about or, or the recommendation
of. . .controlling population growth, you, you mentioned housing. But don't you think
there's the other side of that that when you limit housing, that drives the cost up both
rental and fee. And then what happens is the local residents would have a difficult time
being able to purchase or rent those with the increase in, in cost, and then people that
come from other places that may have the means to buy it or to rent it, and then we end
up the same way that we have local people, families that have been there all their lives,
still not being able to afford it because of the supply and demand. What would be your
response to that?
MR. MAYER: There's two, two areas, one in tax policy in terms of what you do with
homeowner exemptions and allowing it, does it, maybe there's a homeowner's exemption
up to a value up to let's say a certain amount for houses worth less than a certain amount
of money; and then a graduated decreased, perhaps in that homeowner exemption for the
million, two million, three million dollar homes. There, there are policies that you could
do that makes it less more or less attractive for certain people to move into certain homes.
Those are, those are tax and there's a range of things.
The second, the second, thing is with regard to the affordable housing bill, the Workforce
Housing Bill, I believe you were discussing that this morning. And I didn't hear what
you decided, but basically, you could look at it the other way around. You could say how
many houses will you have that are unaffordable. If you decrease the percentage let's say
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from 50 percent to 30 percent as an example, what you're really saying is we're gonna
increase the unaffordable houses from 50 percent to 70 percent. Do you want to make
the unaffordable houses 70 percent? That would be a policy that you folks will have to
decide, it'll come out of your Committee and, and you may want to revise that ordinance.
I would think that personally, you know, I'm not giving a personal opinion on a GPAC
position per se, but a, a policy might be we don't want to change it, we want to make sure
that at least half the houses on Maui are affordable by people growing up here. If you say
no, we're gonna make 70 percent unaffordable, that then you've answered your own
question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mayer, for being here. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mayer, when, when you did your
analysis regarding the, you know, number of tourist coming to this island, was that
analysis based on tourist staying in a hotel as well as people that own timeshares on this
island?
MR. MAYER: The numbers that you see on the tourist as well as the population numbers were
done entirely by DBEDT, not by the Planning Department, nor by the GPAC. So these
are not numbers that we predicted or that we said are desirable or whatever. I personally
talked about it in the GPAC and it never came, never came out of the Department and
sort of insisted that we use the DBEDT numbers because in the past they have been very
good predictors of the future population growth, but if we had taken a look at it and said
how many tourists do we want to have, the closest that we came up to was this ratio of
3:1, and that's really what it is. So it's not a number that's predicted per se that we want
58,000 in 2030, but rather a ratio in regard to the predicted population.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTAN1LLA: So you wouldn't know if DBEDT had included both
hotel stays as well as...
MR. MAYER: No. I believe their, their methodology, if I think I'm correct, the Department can
correct me if I'm wrong, I think their methodology is to count all people who are here on
a part-time basis, timeshare, vacation rentals, B&Bs, hotels, short term condos, all of
those are included in their "visitor count".
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, and one final question, Chairman. I,
I know you, you know, approached me several times in regards to, you know, how much
it's gonna cost the County to,-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --to do all of this infrastructure to meet the growth to
2030. Give me your comments as far as private/public partnership in creating some of
this infrastructure for the County of Maui?
MR. MAYER: Well, I know the Department right now has an impact study, impact fee study
that they've contracted out, that hopefully will be ready for you to look at this summer
when you'll, when you get to the numbers area. That will discuss some of these fees. It
doesn't include all things. It doesn't include a lot of the State responsibilities like
schools, and, and, prisons, and, and a library, public libraries and a lot of State facilities.
But the County facilities, you should ask and make sure that each one of the major
County infrastructure issues are included and not just some future growth things like, a
new water pump for example, but also the replacement of the existing infrastructure as it
ages 'cause that's gonna be a very expensive situation. We have everything from the
wastewater plants to the water pipe lines, and these expenses, so that making sure that we
have the funds available to take care of future growth as well as maintaining the present
system. And those numbers should be coming out of the Department. Hopefully, you'll
see those when you're finished with your budget.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for the comments. You, you,
you know, when we look at Capital Improvement Projects, you know, we always look at
adding things, adding things, adding things, but sometimes we forget who's gonna repair,
who's gonna maintain these facilities. So thank you very much.
MR. MAYER: And, and let me add, and many of the things are not what you usually think of as
CIP, but are very expensive items like water pumps as an example, major pumping, or,
you know, a major equipment for the solid waste area down there where they, you know,
built a whole new ... (inaudible). . . There's a lot of equipment that will constantly have
to be repaired. We're talking about hundreds of fire trucks, half a million dollars each.
You know, those kinds of figures have to be put into the budget because those are big
lump sums that have to be included.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other questions?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, and thank you, Mr. Mayer, for being here. I know
how much time and energy you've put into this and I thank you very much particularly as
Vice-Chair of the GPAC.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, as I look at this plan overall, I'm trying to relate this
plan to what the situation is that Maui finds itself in today.
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MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we're here with a very struggling economy, we're here with
an incredibly high unemployment rate that I can't remember in my lifetime. Maybe there
was one before, but, you know, in my time being in the-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --business world, I've never seen this, and we're trying to get out
of that. Do you think that this General Plan is going to take care of that situation that
we're gonna have a better economy and better jobs based on what is recommended in this
plan?
MR. MAYER: It's a very tough question. It's a great question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a very tough question.
MR. MAYER: It's a great, it's a tough question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I spent a lot of time thinking about it.
MR. MAYER: And I'm not sure that, obviously the plan was drawn up originally, the original
draft that we got was drawn up in very good times. There are tools in here that would
help whether it be good or bad to guide the economy in terms of stimulating as 1 said
some new economic activities, everything from the stuff on top of the mountain to, to
diversifying agriculture, et cetera. The question will be how they're implemented? And
a very important part of it is whether, whoever is the mayor over the next 20-30 years is
gonna have to administer the plan, it's not just having the document. And so that means
will they be able to go out to the, to the investors and get the investments to be made?
Will they be able to run the County government efficiently so that we have the
infrastructure in place to, to do all the things we need to do? So they'll be a lot of
implementation issues that are out there. I think the plan has the, the kernel for future
growth. It allows urban growth areas. It does it in a more efficient manner rather than
having growth taking place everywhere on the island. It will focus it so that whatever
growth we do have, we'll be, the County will be able to service that growth more
effectively with bus routes, police protection, et cetera. So I think there's some, the basic
aspects of the plan will allow that, but the plan does not have money, it doesn't give you
a blank check.
For example, at the national level we talk about stimulus packages, it would be great for
the County to be able to say we're gonna stimulate businesses. Well, the plan does not
have that kind of a function. That will be something the, your Budget Committee will
take a look at and says when, when we prepare, where, where can we selectively invest in
this community to stimulate growth. In the past, there was always one answer,
construction jobs, you know, and that in the end was, was something that just had to be
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fed as a, as a, you know, as a thing, and that meant as soon as you had, you brought more
workers in from outside, now they needed houses. And so it became a, a bit of a, a
growth area that could be, was really unsupportable as we're now finding out.
So I'm gonna give, let me just finish the, one comment. This is a comment that I made to
a Council already 25 years ago. I said one of things, or 30 years ago, when I was, I was
on the Planning Commission at the time, I said we should be looking at is how many high
school graduates we have every year coming out of the schools. Let's say take a number
a thousand, it's a round number. Let's say we have every year, how many people leave
the labor force and let's say it's 300. So we have 700 people being added by a local
population each year that we should be providing jobs then for 700. But what oftentimes
happened over the past 25 years, we're producing 1,000 jobs, 1,500, 2,000 new jobs each
year which meant we were inducing people to move to the island which put a great
burden on our infrastructure, crowding, traffic, et cetera. So we should try to look at it as
a, as a much more even pace of growth rather than this up and down thing and, and, and
boom and bust cycle that all too often we've had a number of booms, we had several
busts in the late 70's, we had a boom, bust in the late early 90's we had one, now we're
having one. It would be much better to even those things out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. You know the thing that goes through my mind and
I know it's going through everybody's mind is how do we create jobs to get people back
to work-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and yet bear in mind the welfare that you and I have-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --for the quality of life here in Maui. And we can sit here and,
you know, work on documents and pontificate for hours, but how do we get people to
work and I cannot think of an answer.
MR. MAYER: Yeah. Part of, part of the problem is that we've become very dependent on
outside sources of income, tourist sector, overly dependent on this tourist sector for our
income. So when that, and that's something we can't control, we can't tell the tourist you
have to come here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
MR. MAYER: The one response that's in the plan is, there is some discussion here in here about
self-sufficiency, growing our own food, providing energy locally rather than importing it,
which keeps the money in the community, circulate in the community that provides jobs.
In other words, building a windmill will provide a lot more jobs than importing oil from
Alaska, Indonesia. And those are the things that are in the plan and that if implemented
-19-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 3, 2010

properly, we will see the energy sector and hopefully the local food sector allow us to
keep money in the community.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. I see that, you know, as a, as an answer that's gonna
come in time-MR. MAYER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --but we don't have time.
MR. MAYER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MR. MAYER: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:
Member Nishiki.

Okay.

Thank you.

Members, other questions?

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Dick, you may not have to answer these questions because they
may seem like I'm being a little spiteful as I talk about what I grew up with here as a
young boy. My parents came as immigrants and they worked hard. We've had different
ethnic groups come in and they were all hard working people. I've heard the often used
terminology saying Wayne, you know what, we're used to working hard, and maybe we
shouldn't allow and make it hard on people that are lazy. And that way we make 'em
leave the island because they can't make it on Maui. Also the fact that and I don't know
if you've had this discussion on people that can afford, tax 'ern. Those that can't don't
tax 'em. This would be a fair way of perhaps controlling the population and not having
that many people come here if you're worried about the population as I am. And finally,
in the area of growth, did you have a discussion at all by saying that as the population
grows and demands grow for government and public infrastructure, it causes government
to grow and, and this is something that we don't want to see. So a population growth
based on not providing jobs or maybe having people really work hard and those are the
ones that get to stay, was there ever a discussion on that?
MR. MAYER: No. Not that I can, we didn't get into that, that's almost philosophical and we,
we did not get into that. And I, and I'm not even sure how I'd even respond to it. We
didn't, we didn't discuss that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, thanks.
MR. MAYER: Thanks for giving me the out before you began.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about taxing people that have a lot of money and, and,
and,—
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MR. MAYER: Yeah, I mean, I can,—
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and if they don't want it they can go, but then-MR. MAYER: --we, the GPAC...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --those that can't afford, many people can't afford to be taxed
don't tax 'ern.
MR. MAYER: Yeah, the GPAC did not discuss that in any detail at all. Individually, and I have
my own opinions, I feel that what we need is a progressive property tax rate where you
say the first 500,000 let's just say $2 per thousand. The next five, the next 300,000, you
know, $3. The next 300,000, it's $4. In other words we, the property tax rate does not
always have to be one number, that's a, that's a very regressive way of doing things at
times in many ways. That you could have a progressive property tax rate that would get
higher revenue for the County. People would then pay based on their ability to pay rather
than...that those are policies that could be carried out. Now I'm talking about myself,
that's not a GPAC position.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I thought maybe when you looked at population growth
and all of these things as far as, you know,—
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --people that are coming and people that you, you don't want
to come or people that you don't want here to stay, the lazy ones, that's why you get rid
of 'em.
MR. MAYER: Yeah. Well, we, we did not discuss lazy and hardworking people.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't think we going, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, can we continue? Any other questions?
Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Mayer.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Charlene Griffin followd by Riki Pestana, Torres-Pestana.
Charlene Griffin? Okay. Then we'll move on to Riki Torres-Pestana... followed by
Lesley Ann Bruce.
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MR. TORRES-PESTANA: Mahalo for letting me come before you today. You gentlemen and
ma'am, you got some hard decisions to make and some hard--how should I say--I think
Wayne just for putting his flag kapakahi, is making some hard statements in the
American consciousness. I think we should really use Mr. Mayer, and you guys should
get together with an open forum, make a meeting and listen to this gentleman. He's been
doing this for 30 years and this onstudy has been going on for three years. I think we
really need to get the community, really need to get with this man here, Mr. Mayers [sic].
We might be different political since I'm, I'm a citizen of the Hawaiian Kingdom, Pahoa
. (inaudible). . . from the Big Island. I live on Maui now.
My wife owns a hostel, where people from all over the world come and stay with us.
And when I get to talk to them they always tell me keep it Maui, keep it Maui, keep it
like this. When they go to Waikiki they come here. Usually when I talk to them, they
end up crying when I tell them the true history of what happens, and read the queen's
story and why we're here and why people like me what we do. So I ask you to dig into
your naau really deeply in your . . . (inaudible). . . and make the decisions that count. For
my two sons that are six and two. . .20 months year old, and your moopunas and the
children of tomorrow because what we have here is priceless and I travelled all over the
world. I go to America at least twice a year, and every summer my wife takes me to
some foreign country. So please I ask again, dig deep into your naau and make those
hard decisions. Think outside the box. I think Mr. Mayer can help us all. And no forget
the Kanaka Maoli why we're here, I hear reference to golden goose and golden coast and
all these gold consciousness. No forget mahalo nui.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, any questions?
Okay. Seeing none, Lesley Ann Bruce followed by Dr. Tony Povilitis, Povilitis?
MS. BRUCE: Good afternoon, my name is Lesley Ann Bruce, I represent myself today. First, I
came today because the people of Hana are suffering. Many are suffering from
unresolved land ownership and entitlement problems. Second, please refer to the last
Core Value in the General Plan Advisory Committee's final version. I have provided you
a copy with a pink boundary. The Core Value language was agreed upon because for
three years, the General Plan Advisory Committee heard a public outcry in all
communities. The wish was to resolve land and ownership entitlement issues. Third, do
not weaken this Core Value, put resolved land and ownership entitlement issues back into
your final version of the Maui Island Plan for 2030. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions? Seeing none,
thank you. Dr. Tony Povilitis followed by Kaniloa Kamaunu.
MR. POVILITIS: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Council, and ladies and
gentlemen. I'm very concerned about what would happen if this draft Maui Island Plan,
is adopted. I suspect that we'll continue destroying our coral reefs on Maui. Look, if I
read the numbers correctly in 25 years, the population on Maui is going to increase by
about 47,000 people. That's a 37 percent increase. Maui's annual growth rate is just
-22-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 3, 2010

under 1.5 percent. That means the population would double continuing at that rate in less
than 50 years. That's equivalent to the growth rate of the country of India. Another
comparison is the island of Puerto Rico, which essentially has a stable population with a
doubling time way out there at 189 years or something like that. That's an island
community.
Most growth on Maui is going to occur near coral reefs. At the current population level
and development level, we're seeing a decline in our coral reefs, some of them quite
seriously, and some have already collapsed. So the question is can we expect to
simultaneously accommodate this kind of growth, and protect and restore our coral reefs?
Are you skeptical? I think there is due cause for some real healthy skepticism. So here
are a couple of suggestions, restructure the Maui Island Plan so that it ties the pace of
development to progress in recovering, protecting and recovering coral reefs. Forging
ahead without doing this will condemn our coral reefs I can almost guarantee you.
Secondly, create a Maui coral reef taskforce. We need a high powered professional and
community team to work on this issue and I'd be happy to help you develop these two
suggestions. Just call on me and mahalo for your time this afternoon.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Yeah, the Chair has a
question I think. Thank you, I think you present some of the kinds of ideas that a General
Plan like this should be challenged with taking a look at. Nothing is, is, is known or
given so you're idea of trying to look at development in terms of recovery or the
restoration of places that in, in essence are gonna be resources for sustainability. So if
you think that there's an appropriate place in this process to include such, such language,
I would suggest that you bring that forward to the Committee so that we might in fact
consider them.
MR. POVILITIS: I appreciate that comment and I'll do that. I think having a recovery team is,
is an excellent idea. We could even be looking at what other nations in other parts of the
U.S. and the Pacific, how they deal with development and, and, and how it impacts coral
reefs. I mean there's a lot of information out there that we haven't pulled together. And I
just don't think that there's any mechanism on Maui for really focusing in on that. So I
appreciate your comment and I'll try to get some information back to you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And thank you for your input. Members, any other
questions? Seeing none, okay, thank you. Kaniloa Kamaunu to be followed by
Johanna Kamaunu.
MR. KAMAUNU: Good afternoon, Council. My name is Kaniloa Kamaunu, I come from
Waihee Valley. And my wife had to step out, she had to get my moopuna so she had to
kind of step away for it so she won't be here to testify unless I can take her time. But
otherwise my concern with this, and we've been in Waihee actively engaged in the
conversations of GPAC and the implementation of some of the things coming out. I
disagree with Mr...Mr. Mayer as far as considering Waihee as part of the central area
because of our demographics, because of some of the, the area is not as part of the city.
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When you come from Wailuku, Kahului, which is a central area, and you're coming to
our area, it's totally different demographics. So to, to bunch us with Wailuku and
Kahului as central I think is wrong because what it does it jeopardizes our area and then
we will be fighting more and more the encumbrances of development. So, you know, I
need to, I disagree on that comment that he made I believe it was last week. That we
should be looked at as in a different outlook because we have different things to consider.
Whereas, Wailuku, Kahului, and these areas have been already changed ... (change tape,
start 2A). . . to more city, more commercial areas, and we don't want to see that happen
to the last area on this side of the island just because the others impose that upon us.
Other things we have to consider in this plan of course, you know, you see me every time
and my number one thing is kuleana, you know, I'm protected by that, the 1850 law, and
I'm also protected by the 1846 law which talks about a compiler's preference which
refers to the rights that I have are vested and can never be divested or can never be
changed or taken away. They cannot be amended. What I have is legal and what I have
is something that cannot be played with and that is also in your. . .both of these laws or
with references to these laws are already in the HRS. For the kuleana it's 7-1, and in fact
63 percent of the laws in the County or State derive from the kingdom laws. So we know
that what we have is already legal, it just needs to be manifested or reiterated.
Statement, insanity, and when I think about this and I listen to this I think of the, the, the
story about insanity where it says to continue to do the same thing over and over and
over, and expect a different outcome, you know, if you're, you know, your taro is wrong
and it doesn't work doing the same thing the same time is not going to change the
outcome. We look at building, it's not changing, it works for a while but it doesn't work.
We look at instituting more things for visitors. It doesn't work. We come back to the
same plateaus all the time. I think of Papa George from Iao, when he was asked the
question how does the recession of the 1920's, how did it affect you as a person here?
He told 'em I don't know, we don't know what is that. I go to the ocean, I catch my fish.
I go to my lois, I pick my taro, I eat my poi. We have fish and poi, but they always could
sustain. Is that insanity? No, because the outcome is a good outcome. What's
happening here is we continuously going over the same road expecting a different turn
but yet like the Groundhog Day, so it happens again and again. So, you know, we, we
need to, we need to find something different. This doesn't work. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mahalo. Members, any questions?
MR. KAMAUNU: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. The next testifier then is Hannah Bernard to be
followed by Robin Knox.
MS. BERNARD: Aloha, Chair Kaho'ohalahala, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Members. Well,
mahalo once again for allowing us this opportunity to testify on our General Plan. I've
testified many times in front of the Planning Commission and, and the, once in front of
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the GPAC. And, I don't envy your task, I mean it's truly daunting, but I think we're
gonna make progress and this plan is so much better than what we're doing now that it's
worth working on and keeping on looking at it. I have some specific comments that
relate to the maps regarding the heritage section in Chapter 2 and Heritage Resources
Chapter in particular. And I, I think it's generally pretty good, it's as I said it's an
improvement and I really appreciate that it was designed to have some smart goals and
objectives because that's key. There's a lot that's being asked of this body to implement
and it can even go further. I think the watershed streams and wetlands and the cultural
historic and archaeological resources action plans are pretty strong, but the shoreline reef
and nearshore waters action plan in some instances could be strengthened.
For instance, rather than simply increasing the number of marine managed areas around
Maui, we need to better manage the ones we currently have. There's so much of our
water that is under State jurisdiction with no funding to manage it. Perhaps we can step
in. I like the idea of, of Tony Povilitis, of yoking our plan with our ability to increase
with our ability to restore. Likewise, with our marine managed areas why don't we
initiate a County job corps the way that we did, some of us NGO's and community
groups with DLNR to create the Makai Watch program where you had community-based
management of one of our protected areas and it was highly successful. We talked with
more than 60,000 people a year, we actually affected close to 100,000 people a year in
that one area alone in terms of taking better care of our resources.
So since I see I'm running out of time, I want to get back to the points with the maps. I
really appreciate the overlays for cultural resources, the scenic corridor, sensitive lands,
preservation lands, marine resource, special management areas, I think these designations
are great and I love that they recognize the importance of our host culture and our maukamakai connection of our resources and ahupuaa management. If we want to have healthy
nearshore waters, we need to take care of the land where it flows from upslope impacts to
nearshore waters. Therefore, all stream valleys and gulches should be added to sensitive
lands designation. No development should be allowed in sensitive lands areas, nor
should there ever be any more channelization of any of our streams.
And then finally, regarding the agricultural zoning maps, zoning 1, 2, and 3 are good and
I see it as that they're gonna get better defined. What we do need to have for areas like
the northwest shore of Maui all the way from Honolua Bay to Kahakuloa is hard edges of
open space and/or greenbelts, and parks, and keeping these areas open and not developed,
nor necessarily in commercial agriculture. In fact, our definition of agriculture needs to
be broadened and we need to have better support for our ability to feed ourselves as
we've talked about before. And our subsistence farming and our taro farming needs to be
better supported. So I'd like to see that that, those Ag designations be better defined and
hopefully we can work on, on doing better with our Ag designation process. So in
closing, none of this matters if we don't take better care of, of our streams and our
nearshore waters. Mahalo.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, questions? Member Baisa
followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Hannah, for being here this
afternoon. I was very interested in your testimony. By any chance do you have a
written...
MS. BERNARD: I do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You do, very good we'd like to take a look at that. Something
you said struck a cord with me and that was about that urban or job corps program you
talked about. Can you tell us a little bit more and I'm interested in knowing does it still
exist?
MS. BERNARD: Well, we, we partnered with a number of community groups around the State
and we created a program called Makai Watch. And so there are 27 communities around
the State that, that wanted to initiate a program where communities were watching over
the nearshore waters. Hand in glove with our DLNR's DOCARE, our Department of
Conservation and Resources Enforcement Branch. And here on Maui that's working
hand-in-hand with Randy Awo and his, his team. And so they, they, they can't do the
job, it's not possible, we don't have the resources, and so we were able to seek private
funding and some, some State funding from Hawaii Tourism Authority so the NGO's
partner with the agencies and the communities and seek funding to provide jobs for our
young people to take care of their aina. And it's a beautiful, it's a beautiful job and it's
going very strong on Oahu, we have it also on Maui now. It's no longer at Ahihi-Kinau
because the State took over management, complete management, and there's no more
community management there. But we have a Makai Watch in Hana down by the blue
pool, Heleleikeoha, that's about to start up again. It had a year hiatus. But this kind of
work is something that I heard from our young people how much it means to them to be
able to do work that takes care of their resources and teaches and particularly the visitors
who don't know what they're doing. They just don't know any better. So it's a, it's a,
it's a great new green job, we need more of those. So the County should lead the way.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MS. BERNARD: I'll give my testimony,—
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MS. BERNARD: --yeah, is that, is that okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, please. Thank you, we'll take that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Wait, we have more questions for you. Member Johnson.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you, Hannah, and I wanted to find out, too, I know because
you've been really active in a lot of the watershed and, you know, developing plans to
prevent a lot of the polluted runoff that ends up on our reefs. Particularly by Honolua, I
was interested in one of the things that you were saying about, you know, limiting the
development and limiting even the type of agriculture that goes on there.
MS. BERNARD: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Are you speaking more specifically for agriculture that doesn't add
any of those nutrients and the nitrates-MS. BERNARD: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --and all of the other things that end up in our beautiful bay area
there?
MS. BERNARD: Right, yeah, in particular, you know, Ag, agriculture is, is good. It feeds us
and we, we want it to, to thrive, and yet if it's not managed properly, then it's another
source of pollution and it's another problem for our nearshore waters and our streams.
And so if it's done too close to stream valleys, and gulches, and its not properly managed
with best management practices, then it's as much a problem as what broad scale
development grading of large tracks of land which are, which are actually illegal on Maui
County. So similarly, it's, it's the land use practices modifying our Ag ordinance in such
a way that we can have better control over what happens in Ag lands so that it doesn't
impact the nearshore waters and the stream valleys with the, the excess nutrients and the
runoff events.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate that 'cause I know that because you've studied
in this area very much I, I really always get concerned about like the black plastic that
ends up, you know, in the water and what that does and so I look forward to working with
the companies that are continuing on in our pineapple area to perhaps find some way that
we can work with them and at least so that that doesn't end up in our waters.
MS. BERNARD: Right. Well, just like we have our recycling industry now and our, and our
alternative energy industry. These are, these are new growing sectors that are renewable
and that are not taking away from our resources but actually we're using them and so we
can do that with our, our pollutant loads too. We can, we can reuse some of those areas.
Some of those nutrients that are going into the streams could be used on land for fertilizer
instead of over nutrifying the ocean. So we definitely need to.. .
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I look forward to working with you on that too.
MS. BERNARD: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you very much. Robin Knox to be followed by Darla White.
MS. KNOX: Aloha, Chair and Members, thank you for allowing us the time to speak with you
today. I'm glad I came after some of the other speakers because I think I have good
news. I think I have the answer that will wrap up all of these problems in one plan and
one course of actions we can take that it will bring great benefit. And that is to comply
with the Clean Water Act. The County, I am sorry to say, has a dismal record on
compliance. Everything from pretreatment to runoff from our landfills is out of
compliance. We're under consent decrees and orders. There's increasing evidence that
the injection wells at the three main plants may be in violation of the Clean Water Act.
There is a part of the plan that object, that there are actually many parts of the plan that
address this because I was participating and active in putting those things in here. But
objective three in particular under shoreline reefs and nearshore waters says water quality
that meets or exceeds State Clean Water Act standards and I think that needs a little bit of
rewording because exceed can be misconstrued. I think we want to say we want to
achieve or attain those standards that would remove any source of confusion. But also I
think that if our County would pay more attention to Clean Water Act compliance that we
would have plans for replacement and maintenance of our wastewater treatment. We
would have agricultural best management practices. We would have place-based
community driven management of water quality. And all of these things are under the
Clean Water Act and if we just engage those programs and work them more, we can get a
lot out of it including Federal funding.
Now in Hawaii there seems to be kind of a drag zone or a black hole somewhere between
the Feds and the County where things, programs don't activate as much as we would like
at the County level. So the County can really take leadership in this and so I encourage
you to keep in here anything related to doing watershed planning and to support that as
well anything to do with attaining water quality standards. In particular, I did want to
follow up on one thing we discussed last time. I thought the discussion with
Mr. Victorino and Ms. Baisa, was really productive for me and very informational when
we talked about different kinds of treatment plants. And I wanted to, I looked back, I'm
on the community working group, and I looked back at our notes from Steve Parabicoli
and Dave Taylor and I just want to clarify the thing about small package treatment plants.
What Mr. Taylor and Steve were talking about with smaller plants is what's called
scalping. And that is basically, it still is part of a regional bigger system, but they're
taking the water off and sending the solids and most of the pollutants on to the regional
plant, but reusing the water in the local area. So that's a little bit different than the
problem of self-contained package plants that are in no way connected to a regional
system. So they're two different things. I wanted to make sure that we didn't confuse
those and also I wanted to point out on the jobs thing that we can not only have
environmental ecological job corps but when you build the proper infrastructure, it does
create construction jobs and also if you have a good compliance program it creates jobs
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for scientists and jobs for people taking care of our resources, and I think that's the kinds
of jobs we want for our island youth.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Knox. Members, any questions?
Okay. Do you have the, excuse me, Robin, do you have information that you can submit
to the Committee-MS. KNOX: Um. ..
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --on what you've testified to?
MS. KNOX: About the wastewater treatment plants or about the Clean Water Act compliance?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, almost all of what you suggested there so.
MS. KNOX: I can, I can submit something to you in writing. Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, it would be helpful for us.
MS. KNOX: Great, I'll do that. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, I appreciate that. You have a question?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and, Robin, because I know you've been going through, you
know, this, this plan to, if there is specific language or specific areas where you think we
can strengthen the language or areas where we need to be stronger or insert things that
really get us at some level of sustainability. I'd really appreciate that because with all
these volumes, it's very difficult for I, at least for me, I can't speak for anyone else, but
when it just is sometimes overwhelming to go through every single section and I think
that people such as yourself, that have that background, I really would appreciate your
input.
MS. KNOX: I, I would be glad to do that and I know too that every word is so important
because it is the General Plan that's gonna guide how we do things in the future.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Robin.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. The next testifier is Darla White.
MS. WHITE: Aloha and thank you very much for giving us this opportunity to give some input.
As I only have a short time here to speak, I'll just let you know I'll have more detailed
information to submit very soon, but the current. . .proposed plan has a lot of good stuff
in it, and as Hannah said, you do have a great deal of work ahead of you. And I would
like to first touch on the Heritage Resources Section Chapter 2, Goal 2.2 having to do
with the reefs. And it says an intact...the goal is to have an intact ecologically functional
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system of reef, shoreline and nearshore waters that are protected in perpetuity. This, in
itself, embraces just an amazing complexity, and it, and it will have an impact on every
other section of the Maui Island Plan. And so I would just like you to always keep this in
the back of your mind because it's all connected. Our, our reefs and our nearshore
resources are priceless to so many, so many levels to the culture, the, it's the refrigerator,
it's our economy, I just can't even tell you. Ecologically, I've been studying it for about
ten years and I'm just really starting to get how complex it is.
Would like to also mention one of the things that keeps coming up when it comes to reefs
is restoration. That is something a little more challenging than any of us in here can
appreciate. I would like to kind of switch the thinking to keeping what we have that is
healthy or still houses a good fish population and protecting it at all cost. Okay and
making sure that our land based uses reflect that. The corals themselves are connected
throughout Maui Nui and so when you lose one reef, you can lose other reefs as well.
They, they spawn, their, their eggs goes someplace else and, and, Maui Nui feeds Maui
Nui so it's important that we protect everything we still have.
Addressing Councilmember Medeiros, and your question about population control. In
the Hawaii Environmental Law, I believe, I could be wrong on this HAR 3001.1 [sic], it
does say that population growth should be in harmony with the natural resources that
support it. And this, we are an island community, we're not the mainland, we have a
very, very different system here. It's very dynamic, it's very fast, it's very finite, and so
our population growth should be sustainable in that respect — the carrying capacity of the
land and the natural resources. And I'm out of time but I would like to say, please keep
in mind that the greater global problems we have with sea level rise and climate change,
our water table is gonna rise and things are gonna change around the shoreline. So thank
you for your time.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa. Darla, we have one question for you please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for being here this afternoon. Thank you, Chair. You
know, all of this information that we receive about the reefs and, you know, the damage
to our reefs and all of that, it really gives us a lot to think about. And I'm not
knowledgeable of a whole lot about that kind of stuff but I hear different things and, you
know, they stick. It was said earlier that we ought to try to repair our reefs or restore our
reefs; I thought I heard you make some reference to that and say how difficult it is. Is it
possible to do that?
MS. WHITE: It's been shown in a number of different examples when you remove the stressors
that the reefs do generally bounce back over great time periods, you know, nothing that
you or I are actually gonna notice, but it's, we have very limited resources in the first
place. And so spending those resources most efficiently and wisely is to protect what we
do have and make that healthier.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So your premise is that it's better that we try to prevent any more
damage than to really worry about how do we get those back. I mean obviously, we want
to do that, but the better tactic is to take care of what we've got.
MS. WHITE: Yes, but in addition to that, removing stressors that are impacting all of our reefs.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know it's interesting when you bring that up because you
said something there about there being a statement that says our development should be
in harmony with our resources, it's really interesting...or sustainable resources. You
know, if you look into Hawaiian history, obviously there were a lot more of us then there
are now, and they managed to sustain themselves. So it's, it's an interesting thing.
Maybe we need to learn how to be more careful of our resources and it's not so much
numbers as it is our carelessness.
MS. WHITE: Yes. Well, we certainly shouldn't need to import 90 percent of our consumables.
We have land that provides and a sea that does as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, you know, I think we're beginning now at this point in our
history to understand the impact of our ways. You know, in the old days, we didn't
know. I think people were ignorant about what, what we were doing and where we were
going. But we're there now, and so now we know that we have to treasure our stuff and
be more careful and be responsible, otherwise there's gonna be nothing left. So anyway,
this problem is good, it's education. Thank you very much.
MS. WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other questions? Okay, seeing none, thank you.
Is there anyone here who has not signed up to testify and would like to testify? If you
would, please come forward at this time. Okay. Seeing none, then if there's no
objections, Members, the Chair would like to go close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Okay, Members, this is how the, the Chair
would like to proceed and we talked a little bit about it in the introduction but before you
is the Draft Maui Island Plan, and you each have a copy of that. Okay, and how I would
like to continue to proceed is by taking them one section at a time or one element at a
time as it's indexed here. And so for the first section which is our introduction element,
preceding the introduction, we have a few pages that have the table of contents, and we
have acknowledgments, and then we have an executive summary. This is going to be
included in the first chapter of the introduction element. And so how the Chair would
like to proceed is that my recommendation is we make a motion to adopt this chapter
which will be inclusive of these acknowledgments at the front end and then following the
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motion then the Chair would open the floor for any discussion on any part of this chapter
that the Members would like to have reviewed, changed, amended, added, deleted. Okay.
Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, I just have a question, Chair. With regard to this first section
because it, it does give the table of contents, if we should change any of the language or
anything while we're going through any of the other sections, should we do this last?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, no, what's going to happen is as we're moving through
and we-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Then it'll...
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --keep track-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --with the element by element, if we make changes in the
elements that are gonna affect this front end,-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --then-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Alright.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --we'll go back.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: That, that's fine, then, Mr. Chair, having heard that, do you want a
motion to go through...it would be going through the table of contents and the
introduction then?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Mr. Chair, I move that we adopt the sections contained
within the table of contents and the introduction as submitted.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: And the introduction element.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: The table of contents and the introductions.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second the motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member Johnson and second by
Member Victorino that we adopt the. . .the index section and element one which is the
introduction section. So Members at this time then, we are open for discussion on this
entire section before you. Go ahead, Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You know, and I'm not sure because I, I saw Maui Land and
Pineapple had a, and I don't know if this is in the executive summary, they had a couple
high points, but then also they had addressed an area where it said introduction
Page 1-10, they suggested adding language that talked about the cultivation of pineapple
persisted in 2010 because of the formation of Haliimaile Pineapple Company. So I
would like to, if I can be directed to that specific section. If Staff can help me 'cause we
don't have anything before us, -CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Well, it's.. .
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --you know, it's kind of hard to figure out.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: At the top of 1-10...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1-10?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Page 1-10,-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the introduction,-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Alright.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --there is a subtitled section Maui's golden pineapple.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And it's up at the top?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So Mr. Chair, I would move to adopt the language to
integrate into that section on Page 1-10, which states the cultivation of pineapple
persisted in 2010 with the formation of Haliimaile Pineapple Company, an offshoot of
Maui Land and Pineapple, which continues the pineapple legacy of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Point of order, are we in that section already or...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We are in the entire section so-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --where you specifically would like to point out your concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we're, so we're in the executive summary portion and
introduction?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The executive summary is adopted along with the introduction
section. So it's all one, one section that we're looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So the motion we made was to accept everything in one
section?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Including the acknowledgments and the index, and the
executive summary which is the front part of it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. That's what we are with our motion?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's the motion on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: At this time the Chair's entertaining any other amendments-COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Second the motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --to that motion.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I second the motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So Member Johnson has made a motion to the section
that is 1-10 in the introductory element and she's amending language in that section.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I wasn't, I'm sorry, I thought we were only in that,
that front section. Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, is it clear that we are adopting that entire
front section along with the introduction element-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --in this motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, thank you for that clarification.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. So Member Johnson, discussion?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I think because of the subsequent revival of this
particular part of the industry, I think it is important to continue that on because if we
don't speak about it, if we don't encourage it, and if we just forget about it, I really think
that we'll lose in the long run and really pineapple has been an important part and I think
particularly with the development of the Maui Gold Brand, that has been something that I
look at as an, an economic boon to Maui, and it has a very good reputation. So I would
really like to see that be. . .you know, at least be acknowledged.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other further discussion? Okay.
Member Johnson, just a clarification then, . . . (change tape, start 2B). . . you're amending
the language that is in,-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I'm just adding it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just adding it.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right. Just adding it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --that has been provided for us in here.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And this would be inserted then after the last word in that paragraph-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --as a new paragraph?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right, it would just be, right, in November 2009, Maui Land and Pine
announced the company would cease pineapple production. However, and, and then that's
where I would put however, the cultivation of pineapple persisted did or continued or persisted in
2010 with the formation. So, so that it's a, it's a continuation of the saga.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's the same, within the same paragraph?
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other discussion on the amendment? Seeing none, then all
those in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no"? Okay, the amendment is carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho' ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to Page 1-10.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, we're still open for discussion on this entire section.
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, on Page 117...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 1-17?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where we have the Maui Island vision.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We had a testifier who has brought this up several times
throughout the process of community meetings and, you know, looking at the General
Plan and she's suggesting that we add back "L" which was resolve land and ownership
entitlement issues and that was Ms. Lesley Bruce. Before I make a motion, I'd like to
hear from the Planning Department why it was removed.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We believe the core value wasn't removed but it was
combined or it reads now as the existing "K". Recognize and be sensitive to land
ownership issues and work toward resolution.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So now they, now it says recognize and be sensitive to land
ownership issues and work toward resolution. And the, the amendment, amendment, that
was suggested it says resolve land and ownership entitlement issues and it is felt that that
covers it.
MR. HUNT: We don't have strong feelings about it, we, as I recall going off memory, there was
some discussion that the new language would be more inclusive...that, I think there was
also some issues about entitlement. This one more speaks to land ownership issues, but
again the Department, if you really like the suggested language better, we can live with
that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It was taken out at what point? You know, there's been so many
bodies involved in the process, I kind of lost track after a while. You know, we have a
GPAC version, we have a Planning Commission version, we have a Director's version,
and now we're gonna have our version. Where, where did it, where did it, where did it
change?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I believe it was at Planning Commission
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa, do you want to make a motion? Hold
on, hold on, Corporation Counsel would like to comment on this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. HOPPER: I just wanted to comment. I'm not certain what the County's role would be in
resolving land title issues. Typically, that would be resolved in court through quiet title
action. I'm not sure to date what the County has done in order to, if anything, to resolve
people's titles issues even if it could. I, I do know that we've had opinions before about
changing the zoning on lands with title issues, and included that while changing the
zoning is not establishing the title, the County has the ability to zone lands and, and
generally doesn't get involved in the title dispute issues which I think have to be resolved
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in court. I suppose the County could look to see what, what it could do with respect to
title issues, but as I understand it right now, I'm not aware of, of what the County does to
resolve title issues or even if it could. I mean the County would say such and such has
title to land, that's not necessarily binding. I, I believe you'd have to go to court, and
that's how the, the law currently is. So that, I'm not sure to what extent that had to do
with this policy 'cause I did not follow the history of it, but I, I just want to bring that
issue up that I'm not sure what exactly the County's role would be legally in establishing
title or being able to resolve those issues.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. You've just verified what I thought
might have been the reason for the change, and that is probably because of our limited
role in these kinds of situations. But I did want us to respond to, Ms. Bruce's suggestion
because, you know, she's worked very, very hard on this and feels very strongly about it.
So I thought it was worth at least discussing it. Chair, I'm okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And, and I just wanted to be clear that since we're on
this section, is that the language that currently is before us says-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --recognize and be sensitive to land ownership issues-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and work towards resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct, as opposed to the former language.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: As opposed to what was handed to us so-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --I just want to make sure that Ms. Bruce is, the new language
that is on here, I, I hope you are aware of. Okay. So at this, at this point in time she is
aware of the new language that was proposed by the Department. Okay, I just want to be
clear because it's not reflected on your, your handouts. So, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa and then Member...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'll, I'll end with this.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to be very clear. Once we adopt things today, say we
agree on this chapter, will there be further opportunity to amend this or is that it?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know we're getting to the deadline but we have to decide.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Chair's plan is to move through each section as we had
with the General Policy Plan, and the entire document is still before us. So when we get
to the very end, then we will have a chance to review the entire document for other
changes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, so, so in case there is a dispute later, we still could take a
look at it again but we need to move forward.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, my question would be for Corporation Counsel. Because we
have no direct authority as you mentioned over dispute resolution with regard to land
titles, that's usually resolved in court as you mentioned. If we were to adopt a, a policy
or a vision statement that said something along the lines that adopt policies or ordinances
that are, that are respectful or consistent with supporting native Hawaiian rights or
kuleanas or something of that sort, is that possible within this? Because that is, and I, I
know Member Nishiki in the past has basically said that we don't accept any land that
basically didn't have a clean title or where there was any kind of dispute. Is that
something that could be inserted within here if we were to work on that language?
MR. HOPPER: Oh, I would, I mean need to advise by looking at the language specifically. I
mean typically, if the general census recognizing native Hawaiian rights, well, to a large
extent, that's required by the constitution right now anyway as far as any new laws. If
specifically with regard to title, I mean, I, I, you know, I need to look at whatever specific
language you're talking about. I don't think there's anything that would be, I, I'd just say
right now, I would need to look at the language that-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HOPPER: --you're talking about, but if it's, if it's a general language such as in adopting
ordinances, recognize, you know, native Hawaiian gathering rights or-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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MR. HOPPER: --other types of rights, I mean that's, that's required right now already so I
would need to really look at the specific type of ordinance and what it dealt with as far as
those, those issues.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And, and the only reason I'm going, you know, asking that
question, Mr. Chair, is because even though we can't necessarily on behalf of landowners
work towards resolution because it may not be something that's within our purview, but
if we adopt ordinances or if our policies within either the legislative or the administrative
sections of our government are consistent in the way we respect those rights and
landownership where there's confusion, I, I just want to throw that idea out because I'm
not sure of the language either, but 1 would hope that at some point maybe that might be
something that would further strengthen this and make it not so nebulous.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Maybe at this time then, I, I don't think that we're,
we're ready to make an amendment-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No. No.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --but it's something that we're-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --worth looking at, and if the Members don't mind then
perhaps we can keep a note of this so that when there's time to review this or revisit this,
then we can do so. So in the meantime then would we just continue? Okay.
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I, I just wanted to follow up on one
point of Member Johnson's questions to Corp Counsel. So, Corp Counsel, you're saying
that, that if it's already a recognized right under the State of Hawaii Constitution, then it's
already stated. How do we, because many of the rights came from laws, Hawaiian
Kingdom laws, that were before we were a State, so up to what, what point in time that
we can go back where we're recognizing those rights without question that it is
recognized by the constitution or by law? As you heard one of the testifiers that come
and knows his Hawaiian Kingdom law fairly well, some of those Hawaii Kingdom laws
were inherited into HRS under certain numbers. So where do we, what is the farthest
back we can go when we're recognizing Hawaiian rights?
MR. HOPPER: I'd, I would say at the outset I'm not an expert on native Hawaiian law, but as
far as the Hawaii State Constitution if, if there's, and, and the constitution as all
constitutions are, it's, it's relatively broad with respect to the rights and so in each factual
instance, you would need to look at, has this been a, an established gathering right, for
example, or, or not. And the, the courts through case law predominantly have interpreted
the constitution to in, in my view really look at specific factual situations. I, I'm not sure
exactly what you mean by how far back we can look if, you know, I, I think the Hawaii
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State Constitution does establish, does establish a date where, where at that time
basically, all, all of the existing rights that existed at a certain time are to be preserved.
And, you know, in a given case, I, I don't think you can resolve that, you know, all cases
in this plan or in a given case, I think the, you know, the history of the particular parcel or
right whether it's a burial site or someone's gathering rights, hunting rights or, or fishing
rights, would need to be looked at. Again, you've got broad authority under this plan. If,
if you're talking about resolving title issues, to me, that is a different thing than, than
perhaps gathering rights may be, you know, concerned, but if, if you would, if you would
look at, you know, the broad types of language that are in here, I don't think that you
would be looking to resolve, you know, resolve those issues. Well, I think it would just
say that in the future, if the County looked at adopting ordinances or, for example,
making zoning changes, that they, the. . .that it would basically give direction to the
County that they should be mindful of those, those concerns when, when looking at, you
know, those particular proposals.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Corp. Counsel, I don't want to spend too
much time on this and the Chair has said that we may go back and look at this as we
proceed so thank you for your response.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The Department would like to respond as well.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We do have a policy that specifically addresses
this issue in the cultural resources sub-element, and so perhaps at that point, discussion
could occur on this item. It's Item No. 49 in your matrix.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, when, when you're ready for that section,
but I appreciate the Planning Department making us aware of that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, at this point, I, I think because there are
some unknowns here, it would be prudent perhaps for us to take some time to review that
before we make-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --any kind of recommended amendments perhaps. Okay. So
at this time the Chair would like to continue to have open discussion on this. Any further
discussion? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You're talking about the. . .just the introduction, you know, you're
talking about this whole section.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. We have only one motion on the floor-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --that's been amended so far.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay, and I'm going to and this is just because No. "I" is
inconsistent with the rest of I guess-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're looking at the same page?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --what, yeah, this is under the vision statement and core values on 117.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, "I".
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You know, and I guess, I just have to ask this question in general of
the Planning Department. Most of the language here is respect and protect, plan and
built, retain and enhance, then like "A" says, responsible stewardship applying and then
you also have "A" and then you have "I", respect and dignity, so there's, there's a theme
that runs through the majority of these core values, and those two things stick out as
being inconsistent in their language in the way that they read. Because, to me, you know,
one is describing something and the other one is saying you, you will plan and you will
build, you respect and protect. And I'll give you an example like on "I"; I would say
respect and acknowledge the dignity of those who live on Maui. I mean, to me, that's,
that's something that's consistent with the rest. So I don't know how the other Members
feel if you don't care about it that's fine, but I just think that if we're trying to be
consistent in the structure of each one of those vision statements, then they should have
similar verbs or similar descriptive words that are, are the same through every core vision
and value.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Department.
MR. HUNT: In our latest review we came upon that same issue so we support your comment
particularly on "I", we can work with you on giving the appropriate language for "A", or
if you have something you'd like to propose.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. I'm going to make an amendment and you tell me if it's okay
then with regard to "I". I move, Mr. Chair, that the language in "I" be changed as
follows: respect and acknowledge the dignity of those who live on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll second that for discussion purpose, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, we have an amendment by Member Johnson to amend
"I" in the vision statement and core values to read and Member Johnson, would you read
that?
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, respect and acknowledge the dignity of those who live on
Maui.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded. Members, discussion?
Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No, and I just, if the Department has any, you know, Planning has,
do you have a problem with that, Department?
MR. HUNT: No, we don't.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay, then I, that's fine, I'll stand on that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and real quickly. I mean, I, I, just think it makes it a
little bit more, more clear to the people so I don't think it's a problem either so I can
support that. It's not a big deal in my mind I think that makes it much more clear and...I
think that's what the people of Maui County deserve. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: If there's no further discussion, then all those in favor of the
amendment signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no"?
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to I in Vision
Statement and Core Values.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the amendment is carried.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, Mr. Chair, I'll make an amendment then on "A", and
Department can tell me if it's alright or not.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, go ahead, Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: On number "A", I would add to the beginning just prior to
responsible, I would add the word adopt and then following stewardship, I would add
okay, let me just read it and then...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Member Johnson, while you're working at that, I guess
the Chair wanted to note that in the Countywide General Policy Plan-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --we have a statement that says excellence in the stewardship
of the natural environment and cultural resources has already an adopted...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And maybe we should look at that too.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, so...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Any, anyway.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm trying to make sure we're not going to be inconsistent-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --so, so that's language I, I'm just putting before you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's already been adopted.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Alright. Then I'm gonna propose that we add in just three little
words and I'll read number "A" as I would propose the change. Adopt responsible
stewardship principles by applying sound natural resource management practices.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second for discussion purposes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:
Okay, moved by Member Johnson and seconded by
Member Victorino to amend "A" in the vision statement and core values to read as...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, right, and did you get that, David? Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to hear from Planning, if I may.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay, Planning.
MR. HUNT: We have no problem with that. An alternative we were coming up with up was simply to
put a verb in front of responsible such as ensure or-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: --something like that, but again we have no problem with the proposed language.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Further discussion? Okay, seeing none, then all those in favor of the
amendment signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no"?
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho' ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to A in Vision
Statement and Core Values.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the amendment is carried. Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can the Staff read, read that the final version of that
amendment?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Please.
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This is core value "A" that was just amended. Adopt
responsible stewardship principles by applying sound natural resource management
practices.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So just three words difference? Okay. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other discussion? Go ahead,
Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I did want to discuss and, and I understand, I was just reading
Maui Land and Pineapple's suggested language with regard to affordable housing where
they go back to state about 2.96, and I wanted to state why I still think that we should
leave our language the way it is. And that is because ordinances change whereas this is
the General Plan, this is our policy guideline. A future Council could change 2.96 that
would then leave that very important principle unaddressed. So I think it's important
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even though it may seem redundant in, and this would be in the, I guess, the suggested
language for the executive summary that was being suggested by Maui Land and Pine.
My, my thing would be just leave it as it is, I don't think it hurts to just simply state that
principle because ordinances change but this is our road map for the next 30 years or 20
years whatever it is. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other discussion on the
motion? Okay, seeing none, then all those in favor of the motion as amended to adopt the
acknowledgements, index, and summary section along with the first element, the
introduction section, as amended signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no"?

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, motion carried. This element is adopted as amended.
Members, it's 3:30 and we have been here for a lengthy time so are you wanting a recess
at this point and time?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What, what are your plans as far as how long you want to
go at this?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, I want to go till we finish the whole, but we have-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (chuckles). . . Realistically.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --gotten through one section and the Chair would like to just
remind the Members that we have a very tight schedule and for the things that I have
agendized, as much as possible, the Chair would like to get through the agenda items. So
it is my hope that we can move along as, as efficiently as we can, but I, I'm sensitive to
some of the time. We can take a ten-minute recess at this point in time, but when we get
to the latter part of this afternoon, then I need to talk about times depending on where
we're at.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So at this point, let's take a ten-minute recess then. We
will reconvene at 3:40. . . . (gavel)..
RECESS:

3:31 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:45 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(gavel). . Okay, Members, the Chair would like to
reconvene our Planning Committee meeting. Okay. The Chair has scheduled in today's
agenda to get through, we got through one section, the introduction. We want to get
through Chapters 1 and 2. So at this time then the Chair would entertain a motion to
adopt Chapter 1 and the Narratives Section of Chapter 1 which would be from Page 1-1
to Page 1-8.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, that is the section on population, right?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct. Chapter 1 is Population and....
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, we have a motion to adopt the Narratives in Chapter 1
on Page 1-1 through 1-8. And moved by Member Victorino, seconded by
Member Medeiros. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair, it's 1-9 unless my book is different from yours.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm looking at separating out the goals and objectives so we're
only taking the Narratives Section.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm fine then. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so, so my motion was just on the, on the Population
Section and goals, objectives, and policies, that comes separate?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We're gonna, we're gonna deal with that after this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay, just so I'm clear, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the motion, to be clear again, is the adoption of
Chapter 1, Population from Page 1-1 to Page 1-9. Moved and seconded...moved by
Member Victorino, moved, seconded by Member Medeiros. Discussion on the motion?
Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. With respect to the issue that was raised by Mr. Mayer because
obviously, you know, these trends and projections and, of course, you know, now we're,
we're reading about out migration of, of some of, you know, the population, I'd like a
comment from our Planning Department to see if this is still consistent, if the forecasts
are still on target.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Department.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, yes they are. Fortunately, the State
Department of Business Economic Development and Tourism has been updating their
econometric model over the last few months to reflect some of the issues that we've seen
with the great recession so we have seen through that DBEDT model a reduction in the
rate of growth to about 1.4 percent annually which it historically at least for the last
several decades is, is rather slow. We believe long term that that's probably a very
realistic growth rate for the County over this planning horizon. As indicated historically,
DBEDT has been very accurate with their projections.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And with respect to the actual, you know, because what
we're dealing with here is just simply the statistical information. It's not where we
necessarily wanna see things go, is that correct?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct. In fact on Page 1-2, there is a statement to that effect that
these projections are just that, projections; they're not intended to be a self-fulfilling
prophecy.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, yeah, 'cause I think that I wanna make abundantly clear
because I think that there are things that we can do to I, with regard to some of the
testifiers plus the other individuals that I've spoken to, to kind of not have the tail wag the
dog. So I, as long as these still remain fairly accurate, Mr. Chair, I don't have, I mean, I
really can't, I'm not a statistician so I really can't offer much other than what's already
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here. And as long as this is supported by the information that we have been provided at
this point in time, I, I don't see that I, we can much, do much to change it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other discussion on the motion then? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm not sure if I'm doing this correctly but 'cause I'm kind of
confused as to the process here, but are we looking at goals now?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just the...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Ms. Baisa, we're only taking the narrative sections.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just the narratives-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and then you're gonna do the goals?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And it's ending at the top half of Page 1-9.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, so just the verbiage-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --at this point?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, well, okay. I'll wait, I'll wait.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, is that 1.9 or 1.8?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1.8.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 'Cause I see goals, objective, and policies on 1.8.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Let me correct that, 1-8.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, yes, I just wanted to make sure that we're all on the same page.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I stand corrected.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. So any further discussion then?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: If not, then all those in favor of the Narrative Section so from
the Chapter 1 Population 1-1 to 1-8 signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no"?
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then that section is adopted. Okay. Members, what we're
gonna do now is we're going to drop the screen and we're gonna take the objectives, the
goals, objectives, and policies now in the same manner that we did. So we'll project
them up and we'll take them by a motion each at a time so we can...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So give us about a minute and we'll drop the screen and
we'll start our projection.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you stand in recess?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It will take me one minute to move my stuff there. . . . (change
tape, start 3A). . . Okay, Members, how we're going to proceed on the matrix part is in
the same manner that we did in the General Policy Plan. So as we look at this section
under Population, we will begin with the goal which is 1.1. Now on the matrix, you will
note that it's just numbered one through whatever it is. But for the document we are
looking at what is in your binder and it's beginning with Goal 1.1, so the Chair's
recommendation is that I would entertain a motion to accept Goal 1.1 and the Objective
1.1.1 and the following policies in that objective.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member Johnson to accept the goals,
objectives, and policies under Population from 1.1 to 1.1.1c. Okay. Members, at this
point, the Chair would entertain any discussion on the objective, the goal, and the
objectives and the attached policies. Okay, Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Again, you know, I'm, I'm sure I'm being, you know, a
. . . (inaudible). . . on this, but anyway again, the language again is, it's just it should run
consistent with some of the other themes so I would say goal, I'm gonna add in and I'm
gonna make an amendment which would be to add language to have Goal 1.1 read as
follows: to allow Maui's people, values, and lifestyles to thrive through strong, healthy,
and vibrant island communities.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a second on the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can the motion be repeated, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. It is also being typed up here at the top on the-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --column that's a blank and we're putting in any amendments.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But we can't see the left margin.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the left margin is the language that's in your binder.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's in your book.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, but does it have a number on the left margin?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One, one.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: This is, we're talking about the goal which is 1.1.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson, do you want to read your
amendment.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I, I, and maybe because I don't want to change the meaning,
the meaning of it, to allow Maui's people, values, and lifestyles to thrive through strong,
healthy, and that doesn't make sense though, just to thrive through and I'm going to add
in one additional section to thrive through the creation of strong, healthy, and vibrant
island communities.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay, Member Johnson, are you complete with that
amendment then?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. That, that reads a little bit better to reflect what the goal
would be underneath there and the only reason that I'm making that as a proposal.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, wait, wait, I need, I need a second now.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, oh.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So do I hear a second on this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll second it for discussion purposes.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay, moved by Member Johnson to amend the goal in 1.1 to
read as is noted above us on the board, seconded by Member Victorino. Discussion on
this amendment?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and my only reason in, in adding this language in is that
when you're looking at a goal, it should be something that describes what the goal is. If
you just say goal as Maui's people, values, and lifestyles will thrive, you know, through,
it's more a statement than it is a goal to me. 'Cause when I look at a goal, the goal
should be to do something, that's your goal and objective, and for me, it just doesn't, it's
an incomplete sentence so that's why I added in. And I think I've captured the essence at
least in what I've got down. Because what I see happening is that you want to create
strong, healthy, vibrant island communities so that people will thrive-CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --and that's my justification.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. It's interesting when we actually sit down
among ourselves and discuss this because I see a goal as a statement of something that we
want to exist. And when you view a goal, it's like this is what we want to see. And when
we have reached that goal, Maui's people, values, and lifestyle, lifestyles, will thrive
through strong, healthy, and vibrant island communities. And then when we get into the
policies, we get the verbs that tell us how we're gonna get there. But what we're looking
for is the goal that we want to see at the end. And that's why I think it expresses a
statement, but that's just my take on it, that's what makes this so interesting.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As Councilmember Baisa noted, all the goals
throughout the document are expressed as end states, and the policy statements are the
pathway to achieve those end states. So the policies you'll see as we work through the
document are in the active voice with verbs.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay, then I withdraw my motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I withdraw my second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, we are now back to...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Sol, before you go forward so I just want to clarify. So
on the policies those are all action words that you're going to be putting in?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Pontanilla, these policies we will go, they're actually
on, on the table for right now as a motion, and then if you want to change those policies
or amend them then this is the time to do so.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you. I think Ms. Baisa
explained it well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Now I'll muddy it up, okay. You know, for me I wouldn't have
a will thrive in a goal, I would have a positive statement that Maui's people, values, and
lifestyles thrive through strong, healthy and vibrant island communities. That's the state
we want to get to. I'd take the will out.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Second that change if that's what you're proposing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I move that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We have a motion to amend by Member Baisa to strike
the word will in the Goal 1.1, seconded by Member Victorino. Discussion on the
motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor of the amendment
to the goal signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Those opposed, "no"?
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho' ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to Goal 1.1.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, that motion is carried. Okay, we're still in the same
section goal, objectives 1.1 through 1.1.1.c.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and does that go all the way down, Mr. Chair, to...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: To the third policy.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. The third, under policy.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: A, B and C.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Alright. Why, why is there, why did you stop there?
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because we have a second objective there with other policies
so we're taking-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, okay, okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the objectives as a separate-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Alright, a separate.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --motion, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Alright, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Members, any other discussion on this motion as amended?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I know this is, you know, not, not gonna make things faster,
but we had somebody raise the issue of who's gonna pay for all this and who's job is it
that's going to do 1.1c, 1.1.1.c? You know, we had these lofty ideas, but who's gonna do
this? And do we have money to do it? Does the Planning Department have the facilities
and the personnel to handle this or. . .Planning?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, do you want to comment?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We do have in the document a, a specific chapter
on implementation where this is addressed more specifically, but there has been
testimony throughout our regional meetings and again here today where, where people
expressed this as an issue that, that, that we need to focus on. So just a couple of
statements related to this question.
The first is that through the entire process, a number of, of excellent ideas have come
forward for projects, programs and regulatory changes that would improve the quality of
life on the island of, that we live. The Department is strongly recommending that
through a prioritization process and we have done prioritization in the implementation
chapter that through that process of prioritizing these different actions, we can identify
those that can be implemented that are the highest priority with the resources that, that we
have available and that we expect to have available in the future as well as a different set
of priorities or actions in the event that funding does become available. The, the
advantage of being more inclusive at this level, is that in the event money becomes
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available from the Federal government or other sources we want to make sure that there
is policy to support these, these good actions. But it is important to clarify, to clarify in
the documents so that we don't create false expectations that these different lists of
priorities have different meanings attached and so that's, that's one general statement.
The second that obviously is coming up because we're in the middle of such a terrible
economic situation is that this document is really, it's a 20-year document. The, the
intent of the document is to look at the, at the long-term vision of the County and not
react to the current economic cycle that we're in. So, you know, clearly, we're cognizant
of the conditions today, but we expect that the economic cycle will change during this
planning horizon and that we'll be confronted with different challenges so this document
really takes a longer term 20-year look. It's not intended to react to this economic cycle
that we're in.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Does that.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, Chair, I'm willing to drop it at this point, but when we get
through with the implementation, then I'll put a marker here to take a look at it again, and
the reason I bring it up is because there's been all this debate about what is the punch of
this document.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is it a law? Is it a rule? Is it something we have to do? And if
that's the case, then we better be careful what we put in it. So we'll revisit later but for
now it's okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And Staff will take, take note of that too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So at this point, then any other discussion on the
motion before us? Okay, seeing none, then all those in favor of adopting Goal 1.1 and
Objective 1.1.1 and the Policies "A", "B", and "C" under that as amended signify by
saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no"?
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Kaho' ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, that is adopted. We are now in the next objective which
is Objective 1.1.2 and the Policies that are under there, 1.1.2.a, b, c, d, e, and f, and the
Action Items that are attached to that.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member Johnson and seconded by
Member Victorino to adopt Objective 1.1.2, the Policies, and Action Items attached to
that. Members, we are now open for discussion on this motion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, so we, we're taking right now just the objective?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Objective 1.1.1 and the policies that are attached to that object.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we stay now, we stay on that one right now. That's
where we stay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: 1.1.1?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Point 2, .2.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Two, eh?
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 1.1.2.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And the policies and the action items that are attached to that
objective.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, I have a question on the Policy 1.1.2.a, for the
Planning Department.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Planning Department, first of all, is there a definition of
what a large or resort destination is? What, what is a large-scale resort? How do you
define that?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You'll, you'll note that there's a little asterisk
there and we do have a. . .definition of what a "large-scale resort development" is. This
issue, this exact question came up during the Planning Commission review process. So
the commission included this definition with the policy statement to provide some clarity.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, so that's the asterisk following the policy?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And the reason I'm asking this is if we confine
resorts to the areas described Wailea, Makena, Kapalua, and Kaanapali, how will that
affect Hana? Is this for anything being built after the adoption of this plan? Planning?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct. The, the intent was, and let me back up a little bit to say that
this has been County policy since the 1980 General Plan update so it was policy direction
that was carried forward from 1980 into the 1990 plan and we've carried it for a little bit
more. But we've also included a map that identifies these areas. In terms of Hana
specifically, what we're looking at here in terms of implementation, and there's another
policy later on that addresses this more specifically is future development of resorts,
large-scale resorts, would have to occur within these areas that are identified.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, Mr. Chairman, another question for Planning. So as,
as you have defined large-scale resort development, it's still not very specific. It does
give a little more information and criteria, but so if, if a resort exists currently and then
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they plan to extend their facilities with...on that property of the existing resort, would
they at one point fall into a large-scale resort development and no longer be able to do it
such as in Hana? Planning?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The, the intent is for, for a new resort operation
that if, if a new large-scale resort development was proposed in an area like Hana, that
would not be allowed pursuant to this policy, that it would have to occur within these
areas that are defined. If, let's focus on this and make sure that we've got the term new.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That we got the what? There's some static going on.
What's his response? Oh, okay. Could you repeat what you said?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: He's gonna go to the mic.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He's going to the podium now.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Hold on, hold on, he's trying to change mic.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, go ahead, Department.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank, thank you, Mr. Chairman. The idea here was any new large-scale
resort development would have to occur within these identified areas so I think the
question was, and correct me if I'm wrong, if there's an expansion of an existing resort?
Okay. If that was the question, one way to address this and this did come up during the
Planning Commission discussion, is to qualify this to indicate that we're talking about
new resort development. And this would not be an expansion necessarily, but a new, a
new resort itself.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, Planning, are you saying we should be inserting the
word new to limit large-scale...to limit new large-scale resort development to be more
specific or qualified?
MR. SUMMERS: That, that would be one way to do it, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Let me ask you a follow up question. You know,
Hana, we have just one hotel and I don't know if you rank that as a resort. But should
and that's the, you know, economic engine for Hana as far as employment. Should that
hotel close and another business entity want to come in and build another resort not on
that property but another property, we're saying under this objective, Hana wouldn't
qualify for a large-scale resort?
MR. SUMMERS: If I understand your question correctly, if a new resort were to be proposed on
a different location, than the current resort, a large-scale resort, yes, the, that's correct.
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That type of facility would not be permitted in that area. So let's, let's walk through this
a little bit more. If in a different area of Hana, a large-scale resort development was
proposed, that project could not move forward with this policy.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Then, Mr. Chairman, I, I have some concerns with that
because we only have one hotel and should they, my, my, my, you know, scenario is
should they shut down, and another organization or company, or investors come in and
would like to build a hotel, a resort type of hotel on a different property in Hana,
Planning is then saying we can't do it. So we wouldn't have one resort in Hana which is
our major employer. So, you know, I, I, I, I cannot support the wording in this that would
exclude Hana from being able to have a large-scale resort development should the people
of Hana want that. And I don't know what I need to do and if I, you know, would be able
to get the support of the, my colleagues, but if we remember what the Maui Hotel and
Lodging Association said in their testimony and in their written testimony that we have in
front of us, they, too were concerned about the limitations to these areas. And they
suggesting a little, you know, wording change but I think with the wording change, it
wouldn't help Hana if, if we're talking about a resort development that would qualify as
that under the Planning Department's definition. So I'm not sure. Planning Department,
you have any suggestions?
MR. SUMMERS: Sure. This, this policy was really intended for resorts like the Grand Wailea,
we're talking very large resorts and the impetus for this were concerns that we might see
similar proposals to what we see in Wailea or Kaanapali on the North Shore. Staff could
look at the definition to make it a little more, a little clearer if you will, that we wouldn't
catch smaller facilities like the Hotel Hana Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah, because your, your definition is very broad.
Like if it was a definition like large-scale resort development shall be defined as more
than four separate buildings on a property with more than 500 rooms, you know, things
like that are more specific. This is really a broad and really not defined I mean to say
multiple accommodation facilities, activity businesses, retail common. It doesn't say
what large means. It just says what would be accommodated on that resort property. So
is there some way we can work this so Hana wouldn't have a negative impact?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Medeiros, I have...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Mr. Medeiros is going and I, I don't want only
Hana because I like him to step back and to look Central Maui. Because there are even
now still plans to build not resort, but accommodations which would be used by visitors
here in Central Maui, but for businesses, schools, and all that. But however, it would be
considered resort and I think, you know, no offense to Hana, I, I, I, if we're gonna change
it, I want Central Maui to be inclusive of that. In fact, it should be inclusive just to make
sure because we do have plans and still on the books for development of hotels in Central
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Maui for business travel and other stuff because that has also been a big bugaboo for
many, many years. Anybody coming here out of Maui Beach and Maui Seaside they've
got to run to Kihei or Lahaina and that's always been a real challenge when you're
talking supporting our local kids, teams coming in for State tournaments, or even the kids
coming in from the neighbor islands for tournaments. So no offense to you,
Mr. Medeiros, I just wanted that also inclusive that not just Hana, but Central Maui. I'm,
I'm very concerned that this would also be something that if I want to build a hotel, do I
say it's for the kids and for business travel only? Well, you know that's not realistic
because there's gonna be visitors that use it, right? I mean it's almost any kind of
accommodation is used by multiple uses. So I just wanted that interjected, I didn't mean
to interrupt you, Mr. Medeiros, but I didn't want to leave the issue with Hana. Central
Maui would have almost the same issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, go ahead, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Member Victorino, you know, can express that and
that's fine because he represents, you know, Wailuku, Central Maui, and, but I, I'm
reflecting on how this would impact Hana as, you know, our major and main economic
engine, the hotel. So were you gonna say something, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, I'm just allowing you to continue.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because it isn't defined very specifically what a
resort is — a large-scale resort.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Member Medeiros, then are you looking at making an
amendment to that and then in the meantime, I have Member Pontanilla that would like to
also add some comments so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I, I think because Member Victorino brought up,
you know, the possibility of, well, why shouldn't they include Kahului and Wailuku, then
I think we should hear all the comments on this particular objective and then put
something together that would be inclusive. So I can yield to him to see, you know-CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --his comments on it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. My question to Planning
Department is in regards to project districts, you know, I, I know certain areas noted on,
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on the screen there were project districts at one time and now we call 'em development
destinations. Can you tell me the difference between a resort and a project district areas?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. A, a project district ordinance or a project district
is really a master, a master planned community for a specific location. Within a project
district you could have conceivably a, a resort and that would be determined through the
adoption of the Project District Zoning Ordinance that would be reviewed by the Council.
So that's, that's really the difference. A large-scale resort is, is a type of specific land use
whereas a project district is really a planning framework for an area of land. And in
terms of this definition itself, we can construct it, wouldn't want to do it on the fly, but
we could construct it to meet the concerns of both Councilmember Victorino and
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: To include both Central Maui as well as Hana?
MR. SUMMERS: Right, for, for the island.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For the total island?
MR. SUMMERS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. And I think the hotel industry had an issue in
regards to, you know, smaller type of developments, destinations actually, and the
definition that they proposed would have cleared that, but yeah, if you could work out
with, you know, on the definitions to include Central Maui and Hana, as destinations,
resort destinations would be good. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. At this point then, Member Medeiros, what is your...
Well, I, I, I would agree, you know, with
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Member Pontanilla, and if Planning can include Hana and Central Maui, then I'd be
satisfied with that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Short of--go ahead, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, before we settle on that, for me, the definition is
really important because if we knew how big and how much defines multiple
accommodation facilities, then I wouldn't be concerned about the fact that Kula Lodge
wants to expand. So, you know, I think we better be a little more specific about what
we're trying to do. I think I know what we're trying to do, we're trying to prevent, you
know, another hotel row like we have in Wailea and in Kaanapali or wherever we have
these things, but if the definition is not clear enough to prevent that. It's not, you know,
it's not good enough, we need to work on it.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. At this point then, Staff, I mean, Department, then are
you suggesting that you will be able to work with something and provide that at some
later date?
MR. SUMMERS: Yes, that's...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Or is this something that you want to deal with right now?
MR. SUMMERS: At a future date, yes, that's correct. We would like to focus on the definitions
so that we don't catch these smaller facilities inadvertently. That was the premise we
were working on, not that we would look at creating new resort destination areas in
Central Maui and East Maui, but reconstruct the definition so that we don't catch smaller
facilities like a business hotel or affect an expansion of the existing Hana Hotel.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. At this point then, Member Johnson, do you have a
question?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. I, this whole thing just kind of bothers me and, and I'll tell
you why on 1.1.2a [sic]. And, you know, where you limit large-scale resort development
to areas within these boundaries as was mentioned by several of the testifiers. If the
environment cannot sustain more expansion into those areas because those are the areas
that are already having degraded reef life, you know, they're, you're gonna ruin what
already exists. So my, my thing to Planning would be if we can work on two different
sections within this area and I'm, I'm just gonna read this, I'm not making an amendment
but my thinking is that we acknowledge Maui's existing large-scale resort destined
area. . .destination areas located in Wailea, Makena, Kapalua, and Kaanapali and insure
continued public access to these areas. Further development in these areas should be
considered only if the environment and resources can sustain such expansion. So I'm
looking at it from, if you constrain growth just to these areas ... (change tape, start
3B). . . what are we really saying? We're, we're just going to degrade what we already
have that's already getting degraded. So by intensifying the use in that area, I just have a
huge problem with the way that this is going.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And my thing on the second part would be then to define into other
areas like Hana, in Central, where we're doing the A&B, you know, hotel or whatever
boutique hotel, then, you know, just come up with some language where you address the
different scale of that, but I, I have a huge problem with the way that this reads. We're
being constrained.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Planning Department, are you taking that into
consideration as well?
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MR. SUMMERS: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, Members, at this point, I, the Chair's just
understanding that we don't have an amendment on this particular...we're gonna defer
this to the Department to come up with recommendations for this.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Our recommendations too, please.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Are there any other discussions on this motion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have testimony from the Hotel Association and they raised
the issue of 1.1.2.b, promoting a sustainable community by not exceeding a visitor
population greater than 33 percent of the resident population; one visitor to three
residents. They don't have a problem with that. Their question is who and how are we
going to take a look at that and who, who's gonna say oh, the 33 rd guy arrived. So that's
the concern that they're raising. Is it, can we actually, you know, monitor this
33 percent?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, do you have a comment?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The, the intent here is to manage it through the
entitlement of future Hotel zoned or, or land for visitor accommodation units. It's not
intended to create a situation where we have somebody standing at the airport turning
people away. That was actually some, a concern that was expressed at one point. So the
Department to clarify this a little bit does have a. . .a recommended amendment to that
particular policy. It would read as follows: to promote a sustainable community by
managing visitor accommodation units so that the nonresident/visitor population does not
exceed one nonresident/visitor to three residents. Shall I, David, did you catch that?
. . .(laughter). . .

MR. SUMMERS: Okay, let me read it again for you. Promote a sustainable community by
managing visitor accommodation units so that the nonresident/visitor population does not
exceed one nonresident/visitor to three residents.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, hold on.
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MR. SUMMERS: And this places the focus on land use which is really where such a concept
could be implemented.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Let me go to Member Victorino and then
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, and I, I, I kind of like I, I, I rather see this
direction we're going, but I would somehow want to put in the word average because
again, you know, there are the high seasons and the low seasons and, and I don't know
how you can do it on a daily basis or a monthly basis but an average would be more in
my, my line of thinking because again, we allow when we have busier, busier times and
if there's more people, then there's more people. And then when it's slower, there's less
people, but to say one to three, I don't know who would monitor that one to three on a,
even on a unit count who would do that? So that is my question to the Department even
with that change, I, I'm afraid that's, it's a managing challenge but I'll listen to the
answer.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I listened to what Mr. Summers said and it appears that what
might help is on the first line where it says promote a sustainable community by
managing the permitting or the, I don't know what you call the process where you allow
them to happen I guess it's permitting or development or whatever you want to call `em,
of visitor accommodation units. 'Cause that's how you're gonna manage it is you're
gonna say no, you can't build any more because you did already. I mean, we're there.
Otherwise, who's gonna manage it? Or how are you gonna manage it?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay, very good. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, I like the addition of the language by Member Baisa. I think
what it does is it's within our purview cause we can't manage the units, you know, that's
not our kuleana, but yeah, I, I like this. I think it's better, and I think it's more clear and
if s, it's not talking about the per capita or the average at this point. What it's doing is
going through a land use mechanism-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --so I support this.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, with that change I think I can support. Now,
now it makes more sense because it made no sense the way they were, both, both
versions had no sense, but that does really put it where we need to go and thank you,
Ms. Baisa, for that suggestion.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm going to Member Medeiros and then
Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I just want some clarification,
maybe from Planning or, or from, well, Planning brought up the one to three ratio, but
this one to three ratio, is that for the total resident population or that area where the resort
is? What are you saying?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: We're not there yet.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That would be the population of visitors on the
island at any given time.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: As it relates to the population of...
MR. SUMMERS: As it relates to the resident population so...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Wow, how you going do that?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: By permitting visitor accommodation units that only
accommodate them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So just give me an example, say for Hana, we, we have, the
hotel has about 100 units. So what would we be allowed?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: A hundred.
MR. SUMMERS: Well, this, this is really an islandwide ratio, so, so every, every region will be
different.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, so somebody's gonna do a table for every region?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: No, no. No, Member...
MR. SUMMERS: No, this is really looking at the island as a whole.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, I think we're getting really caught up in, in trying to
come out with the math here. Okay. All we're saying is that if you envision that at any
given moment in time on Maui island for what your population base is--67-
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --that it should not get to the point it exceeds this ratio of 1:3
or 3:1. And the way you're managing this is by the numbers of units that you are in your
policy stating that you will permit. So you will know exactly how many units are
existing at any given point in time. If that ratio of units based on your population at that
time is, exceeds this ratio, then you know that you've already gone way over. So we're
not looking at the specific number. If you have 100 units at Hana, that's all you have is
100 units.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You may fill it, you know, in whatever number, but that 100
units become part of the ratio so, so we're not saying to Hana that you cannot have any
more than 100-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --you know, because that's your capacity right there.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: If you want more, then you have to permit more
accommodation units. And then by doing that, you increase the number to the point that
we look at the ratio based on Hana versus adding everyone else. So, so I don't want us to
kind of get bogged down in trying to do the calculations here but we're just saying at a
ratio of 1:3, the way to manage that in a policy is to say that the governing bodies have
the ability to permit those numbers and that is how you keep track of that. It's not a
counting of how many visitors actually come off the plane.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Does it make sense?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, it's still, not totally to me, but that's fine. I don't want
to, you know, move it any further than that because I'm sure we all have different
perspectives or interpretations of it, but thank you, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, yeah, if I, if I can, I want to make sure that we're clear on
this.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
- 68 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 3, 2010

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: If Maui island has 100 units, that's your total units right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Of the whole island?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: For the whole island.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then you have 300 residences. Okay. If, I'm
trying to simplify it, if you increase the 100 units right now to go to 200-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --then you change this whole ratio to become 2:3. So that's
how you look at managing it by the number of units you have. So you know what your
population units are and you know what the population number is, then you'll look at
what your, your visitor units are and what that represents in terms of numbers. And that's
how you keep the ratio in check. So you never want it to go to some number where
you've got 300 units for hotel and you've got only 100 units for your, your residents.
Then you've totally swung the other way around so, so the ratio is simply telling us what
kind of relationship we see the population to the visitor. And you control that by the
numbers that you allow to be permitted to be built.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, so just, you know, I mean that's a good
explanation. So currently it says visitor population and resident population so that's the
same as the units you're talking about?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: When you look at the ratio, you want to make sure that when
you add them together, that the ratio of visitors doesn't overcome the ratio of 1:3.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, as far as resident population?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the current ratio right now?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Department.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 3, 2010

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In 2000 it was about 1:3, and it's been right
around that level since then.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. That was based on the visitor versus resident
population.
MR. SUMMERS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, so, so that's what you're basing it on right?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Room.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, wait.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, the statement says population.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wait, no, no, let, I just want clarification. The statement
we presently have, not the one we're working on, you based it upon population, right?
Resident population versus visitor that's how you based the 3:1 ratio, or at least that's
what you're answering right now, right?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. SUMMERS: Right. Let me, let me give you a very simple example-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: --using...let's, let's assume that we have four people on the island on any
given day, a total of four people, one of the four is a visitor and three are residents.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: So that's, that's how it's constructed and creating a ratio, you end up with
about a 33 percent of the population on the island on any given day is, is a visitor or a
nonresident.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what we're trying to do here now is put in permitting as
the way to do this ratio thing and based upon managing the permits or accommodation
units or visitor accommodation units, right?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Victorino, this would be a policy.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we're saying as a policy-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --for Maui, Maui island, this is what you need to look at.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay, good. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, Mr. Summers, so if the population is 100,000, for
Maui County or for Maui, so we looking at a total of 33,000 units basically?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, how you do it, you, you take the number of units and then we have data
on household size and data on the number of visitors per unit. So you have to use that
data-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So it's not,-MR. SUMMERS: --to make your projection.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --it's not 100,000 and 33,000 units on any given day?
Basically, that's what it is, right?
MR. SUMMERS: You take the. . .you take the household size or the number of people per
visitor unit and just run the numbers and we can do the math and manage it that way so.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this question. When you say visitor's
accommodation units, can you identify then?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is there a number that represents a unit that's called a
visitor accommodation unit?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, we do have data on the number of visitor accommodation units in, on
the island. And it's arranged in different types, you've got traditional hotels and
timeshares and bed and breakfast. So you take the sum total of all those and have your
data on occupancy-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
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MR. SUMMERS: -- and do the math.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Wait, just wait. You, are you clarified?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thoroughly confused. Thoroughly confused so--you can
go on to Member Nishiki.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, there are many different kinds of visitor units. If you
take that total number and you assign them an average number to each unit, that would
equal the amount of visitors that could occupy all those units.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Correct.
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct, and, and the data...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And they will compare that number against the current
population for Maui island.
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct. And, and, different State agencies collect this data on the
average visitor census and resident population. So it's, it's a stable data source that the
counties have used for, for many years.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I don't think I like this...because this is saying that as
long as the population on Maui increases, you can continue to allow more rooms to
occur. And then we become another Honolulu. You know, I think right now Maui, Maui
chose to develop in certain areas and attract I would say the high end type of visitor.
And, and to me, that was good, we chose to select. Now I think we cheapen Maui and
then we bring, bring in... as long as you have the population increasing, then you bring in
more tourist. And then we, we, we, we get into a Honolulu. And, and, and I don't want
that to happen, you know, more of it, more people living here and more visitors. That's
not the quality of life I want for Maui, I'm sorry, and I can't go along with that. That's
not where I want this Maui to go, and, and I'm not buying into it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, this is an amendment that's been offered so
this is discussion on this,-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It doesn't make sense.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the amendment so. Is there any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I have more discussion.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Wait, hold on.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The same thing that Mr. Kaha...what is his name is, the
Hawaiian person said. You know, you, you, you do the same thing and you make the
same mistakes and then you, you, what do you gain? You gain a quality of life that is
deteriorated. You, you, you, you, you, you, you, you eliminate, you, you bringing in the
same kind of--I hope this isn't offensive--but you're bringing in the, the, the mainland
lifestyle into this place that has a different kind of lifestyle and a different kind of people
and, and, and, and, and, and then you, you just change people. And then you, then
Maui's gone for the very reason why we're living here. That's what it is, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's what, that's what you're doing.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I'm trying to focus again on what we're
trying to do here. And it appears that based on the statistics that Mr. Summers gave us
that currently this is the situation, and it has been for what since 2000. That we have one
nonresident visitor to three residents based on the statistics available.
MR. SUMMERS: In the last decade that's correct. Working over the last three decades the rate
of growth of the visitor population has far exceeded the rate of growth of the resident
population. That's how we've come from 1:20 to 1:3. This would stabilize and prevent
it from going to 1:2 or 1:1 at some point in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I'm trying to get to that because I think that is the reason for
this is we're saying we've kind of reached a point where 1:3 we're used to and, you
know, we're not all crazy about it but, you know, we can live with it. So we kind of want
to maintain that rather than letting everything, everything go crazy and then we get to 1:2
or 1:1 or whatever it is. If as Member Nishiki says, you know, the horse is out of the
barn and everybody starts building all over the place. I think that was the purpose of why
this was put there was to try to say okay, we're at this point, but we want to maintain this
ratio and not let it go crazy.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa, I think you're correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yep.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is that this is a guide that helps you to look for the next ten to
20 years in how you want to manage this, this growth, and without any kind of policy
statement, there will be nothing that will guide any of the decision makers in terms of
how to manage this growth. You know so, so I, I think she's correct in making that the
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reason for this is to give some guidance and allow policymakers to make those decisions.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not, I'm not, I'm not worried about what is correct and
what is not, Mr. Chair. I'm just, I'm just looking at what the footprint is going to show if
we continue to, to use this type of policy statement. That's what I'm worried about.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And right now there is no footprint.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, this is not the footprint I want to use.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then you need to come up with another footprint.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And that's why I think we need to look at this more, I'm not
ready to.. .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not ready to-CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: So, Member,—
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and I don't I think any of us are.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --Member Nishiki this is-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not just speaking for myself.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --one amendment on a specific policy statement. So if you can
decide how you want to support or not support this, you are free to make any other
amendments following this at any point in time while we're in this section so. I want to
continue the discussion on the motion so is there any further discussion. Good.
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is there a motion?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes, there is a motion.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: My, my comment to address some of the concerns being raised by
Member Nishiki would be to add additional language to this to say provided such
expansion is supported by island resources, you know, and, and, it, because we can't even
sustain expanding resident population at some point.
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CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. At this point, Member Johnson, we're in discussion-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --so if you wanna make a further amendment-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I, I'm making...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --you need to put that before you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I move to amend-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The amendment.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --the amendment to add that language that provided such expansion
is supported by island resources.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, there is an amendment to the amendment, do I hear a
second on this?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll second it for discussion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You know, and the only reason that I'm adding this in is because of
the same issues that I raised in the first part that when you're limiting growth to existing
resort areas or large-scale resort areas, my concern is you are further adding to the burden
on our environment, and I don't know that we can sustain that. And it's really nice to use
the words sustainable, but at some point, we've got to, we got to find out what we can
and cannot sustain, and I'll tell you, if people come to Maui and the reefs are dead, and
the ocean stinks because there's algae all over, then you're, you're not gonna be able to
achieve any of these goals because people will stop coming here. And so, you know, I, I
understand what Member Nishiki is saying and I'm offering this as, you know, it might
not be perfect but at least as one way to at least keep in mind that we are not the
mainland. We, we have edges. We're an island and we can only support so many
residents and so many visitors and we're gonna have to decide if the environment can
support that. And I don't think we're there yet.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion. Okay. Member Baisa followed by
Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know the reason why I am working with this is because I
am respecting the work that was put into this by the GPAC, the Planning Commission,
and the Planning Department and everybody. I'm not always comfortable with finite
numbers because, you know, numbers are just those, just that, they're numbers, but you
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know, because everybody's worked so hard on this, I can buy this 1:3 thing. But I think
it's an attempt to try to control how much bigger this industry goes. However, I'm
concerned about that too because it's one of our most important industries, but I also
agree with Member Johnson that we cannot just go willy-nilly 'cause we're already
reaping the effects of not doing a good job of putting in infrastructure before we do
development and then we live with the traffic and the bad reefs and no water and, you
know, all the things that we have to deal with every day as, as elected officials. So I
think it's a prudent solution to a tough problem.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Can I, can I ask Dick Mayer a question, if there's no
objections?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Mr. Mayer.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Dick,-MR. MAYER: Yes, Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --the, the, language that is now being put in and the discussion
that GPAC had, is it similar? As the population grows, you, you, you, you keep on
bringing in more visitors?
MR. MAYER: I think that...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is that how you envisioned it?
MR. MAYER: The discussion that we had at GPAC I think was this would be an upper limit to
the growth of the tourist industry within our whole economy. There should not be greater
than a certain percentage, and this was a mechanism to do that. We did not discuss the
implications of a bigger tourist industry per se absolutely on the island, we're talking
about in relationship to the rest of the economy, the rest of the community, and the
feeling people would have if, if there was a very high percentage of tourists on the island
relative to residents. So the, the issue you're raising, do you really want to see the
tourism industry grow at all that was...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, no that's not the issue that I'm raising, Dick.
MR. MAYER: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm saying that in this type of formula, as the population
increases, you're saying that you can allow more visitors to come.
MR. MAYER: That's correct that, that was...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and that's the part that I think Jo Anne's trying to, to,
to say and I think some testifier said today, you know, we continue on in this manner
with the population without addressing say the, the resources.
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What does that gain us? You know, we're, we're, we're, we're
going into destroying the very things that we cherish here on the island.
MR. MAYER: And that's the decision that you folks have. I mean, the GPAC, I'd say, I'll
speak for the GPAC now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, that's all I want to hear you.
MR. MAYER: And the GPAC did not address that particular issue about the tourism industry
growing and its impact overall, but it was doing it more on a, on a social economic thing,
not on the physical resources, and saying that probably no more than one third of the
economy, one third of the population at any one time on the island, should be visitors. It
was not looking at the impact, now you may want to have other protections. You may
say that's and that would be other, wordings that was not by the GPAC saying, talking
about the impact of the tourist industry or how to prevent it from damaging the, the
physical environment on the island. That would be probably a separate policy, but it
could be an added policy that you may want either in this section or in the heritage
section that's coming up where you're talking about the physical environment.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I guess, I guess the question Dick is this, we've got an
industry that employs so many people.
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And now, you, you're saying, well, build it as much as
your population increases. Okay. My, my concern is this, is there a point if we follow
this rule-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --when we decide and we decided it. I remember when I don't
know how long ago eight, eight, maybe ten years ago, to have a hotel moratorium.
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MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you remember that time?
MR. MAYER: Yes, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay, the, the concern was that we were growing too
fast. The people that we wanted that were working in the industry, the hotels were not
maintaining their occupancy so then it defeated the purpose of it being an employer
because people working in the industry were, were had their hours cut and everything
else.
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, so it destroyed the very thing of,-MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --oh, this was a good employer. We wanted to keep our people
employed in the hotel at 100 percent, if possible, thereby keeping the, the room
occupancy up. Okay and that was the very reason. You go with this now and you look at
what is occurring now, and as Victorino said, it goes up and down.
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But you have these types of circumstances occurring, we're
going to see the same thing happen with this workforce. That they're going to be
working on a very questionable work hours and, and is this what we want.
MR. MAYER: Now, you raise a second issue. The first issue that I thought you were talking
about is the effect on the physical environment.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, that's fine.
MR. MAYER: And the second now is to the degree which we want to be dependent on the
tourist industry which may go up and down, which is a social, which is a socioeconomic
issue. They're both, and both of those are valid concerns and I would raise the other
issue and that is we're an island with physical limits.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. MAYER: And that's different than somebody growing in, in Vegas or Niagra Falls or
wherever, where you can just keep growing out from that area. We do have limits on the
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island and we have an environment that's, that's limited in terms of how, what is, the
term that is oftentimes is used is carrying capacity.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Mayer, I think the original question for us was
looking at this particular policy as whether or not the GPAC had in fact supported this,
and it would be helpful for us if we can focus back in-MR. MAYER: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --`cause it's the motion before us-MR. MAYER: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and we'll be able to talk about all of those other potential
areas so.
MR. MAYER: Very good.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So is this a policy that you think reflects what GPAC had
intended in terms of looking at?
MR. MAYER: As it's revised now or as it was?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, you know the original language that's here.
MR. MAYER: Yeah. Basically, it was meant as an upper limit on the growth, that as population
grew, the tourism would be allowed to grow, that was what the GPAC said. Now, we did
not go further in talking about the implications of what that might be at least in this
policy.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So all we would need to know is, is this . . . (change
tape, start 4A). . . something that it was supported--yes or no?
MR. MAYER: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So..
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question. Yeah, not for Dick, but for the Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If we adopt such a policy, and we want, we see that there may
be a need for a moratoria, is there any justification then because this language is in the,
the plan?
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Corporation...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Or can it be beat down and say hey, this is what it says, sorry,
the law says you can't create a moratorium.
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Well, first I would say reading this policy, this is, this is
a cap. This isn't saying that as the resident population increases, you must increase hotel,
hotel rooms. In fact, you could, you could...in practice this says it cannot exceed a 3:1,
or 1:3, but it could be less than that. You could say we'll have a 1:1 or 2:1 ratio, this just
says that this is a cap. Right now there is no cap so you could have 5:1, 6:1, 7:1, I think
whatever ratio you would want. Like other policies, this is not intended to be
self-executing; you would need to look at this through your permitting of hotels, your
areas of Hotel zoned lands in order to implement this.
As far as a moratorium is concerned, you know, that's a whole separate section of the
law. Moratorium needs to be for a specific type of, you know, for a specific goal, for a
specific period of time. As far as a moratium on hotels, I'm not sure about the current
state of Hotel zoning in the County, but, you know, you, you could obviously have a
moratorium in that you would not be rezoning any further projects to Hotel. That's just
the decision that Council could make because if there's any new Hotel zoning, you would
need to make that decision anyway. It wouldn't be a moratorium; you would just decide
not to rezone certain areas to Hotel. But as far as this language, this, this, I do not believe
would prevent the Council from establishing or in practice having a less than 3:1 ratio.
It's just that the, the policy says that the County should not go above a 3:1 ratio as I
understand it. So it's not a minimum, it's a, it's a maximum limit which I think is an
important distinction.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, that, and I thank you for that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But, but should we add any more language or do you think that
that, that is self-explanatory meaning about going above it rather than below it?
MR. HOPPER: I, I can say as I read it I think that it's, it's clearly an upper limit.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. HOPPER: We could come up with language that says, you know, this is not intended to be
a, a minimum limit or it could be a lower ratio or something like that. I don't have it in
my head right now, but I mean I think you would, to say that this would require, either
require or encourage a policy of increasing visitor count as the population increased, you
know, that, someone could, you know, I'm not sure that I would have that interpretation
of this, but if the, if the Committee has concerns, we could come up with language I
think, you know, dealing with, with those issues. Maybe something similar to what
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Member Johnson proposed, but, you know, referencing such expansion, I, I don't see any
expansion that's really being discussed. It's just saying that if you are, you know to, as a
cap is the only issue that's, that's there that, so we could work on different language if, if
the Committee so desires.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I guess I want it to, to, and, and, and, and if this is okay
for you to get language to say that it doesn't increase the nonresident that if the
residential number was higher that's okay. You know what I mean, exactly what you
were trying to say.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I think he already said that.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I know he already said that; I want him to say it in language.
In, in, in, in writing it that's all so that it's real crystal clear. You know what I'm saying,
Sol?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: We don't want a nonresident-CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: I...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --to go up.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Nishiki, I, I-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's okay-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --understand your concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --if the residential one goes 4:1, 5:1, 6:1, 7:1, 9:1, that much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I understand what you're saying. Yeah. And I think the
suggestion is that this is adequate for now, it's viewed as cap. If you want additional
language to add to that part that you would be concerned with, then that can be amended.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can you help me write that?
MR. HOPPER: If, if the Committee wants, yes, absolutely. If the Committee wants me to come
up with language to amend this, I don't know if I can do it right this minute--81-
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
MR. HOPPER: --on the fly, but I, I could do that and assist the Department with that as well.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So then the Chair would recommend that, that you come up
with some language and Member Nishiki can take a look at that. And when we come
back to revisit, you can make an amendment to this section.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: In the meantime, we still have this motion on the floor as it's
been amended and the Chair is gonna ask for any further discussions. Otherwise, I'm
taking a vote on, on what is before us. Okay. Further discussion? Okay, then all those in
favor of the amendment signify by saying "aye".
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. How many noes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two noes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay and you have one, two, three, four ayes. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, you don't have four ayes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, I'm sorry. Three ayes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Three ayes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm looking at Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The motion doesn't carry then.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Motion doesn't... does the motion fail... four, okay. Okay, then
the, the motion fails.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair
Kaho' ohalahala.
NOES: Councilmembers Nishiki and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Medeiros and Molina.

MOTION FAILED.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I guess we go back to the original one.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We're back to the original motion before us. Is there
further discussion on the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Mr. Chair,-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I would rather accept the, the, the language that's there
now and when this is thought out and put together with all the variables and brought back
as you're suggesting at a later time, I'd be willing to look at it at that point in time.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, with that failure, we're back to the same-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --motion okay. The Chair is asking is there, is there any
further discussion or amendments to offer on the motion before us?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I would ask that we defer this area.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Defer the...
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Not vote on it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's fine.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Not vote on anything.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They want to defer it, then fine.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And the specific section that we are deferring is...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Policy 1.1.1...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, we're on Objective 1.1.2, and the policies attached. So
if there's no objections, then the Chair will defer this item. And...

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: BKM and MM)
ACTION:

DEFER Objective 1.1.2 and Policies 1.1.2.a to 1.1.2.f and Action Items
pending further discussion.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then at this point it is five o'clock and the Chair's
going to be losing quorum so at this point, I would like to recess this meeting to a date
and time specific. And Staff, we're looking at? Okay. Members, the Chair would like to
recess the meeting so that we might continue on this agenda item which takes up the
remainder of this chapter and the next chapter which is Heritage. And a suggested time
for reconvening would be following the Council Meeting on Friday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I cannot, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: If not, then the next date available would be for Monday. The
date again, Staff?
MR. RAATZ: February 8 th .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: February 8 th . Would you please check your calendars right
now?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I can tell you I will not be here because I'm off
to the mainland as I had stated and I will not be returning till the 10 th of February.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm definitely out till the 10 th . I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I can be here Monday in the afternoon.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Monday afternoon?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I gotta check my calendar. Just give us minute for a recess.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: How about a five-minute recess so that Members can check
your calendars and we'll check with other Members, Staff
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Check with Medeiros too, yeah. And Molina.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Five-minute recess. . . . (gavel). .
RECESS:

5:03 p.m.

RECONVENE: 5:08 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:
. (gavel)... Okay, the Chair would like to reconvene this
meeting. And announce that we are going to recess today's meeting to Monday,
February 8 th beginning at 1:30 p.m., here at the Council Chambers. So the Chair wants
to thank the Members for their time today and I am looking forward to our reconvening
on Monday the 8 th . Okay. Be prepared to bring whatever amendments you want to offer
in this particular section that's on our agenda items today, and then we'll work through it
on Monday. So thank you for your time. This meeting is now recessed. . .(gavel). .
,
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